| REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) – COVER SHEET | | | |
|---|--|--|--|
| Title: IT Asset Management Services | | | |
| Solicitation Number: | INFC-2022-23-PS4446 | | |
| Date of RFP: | January 5 th 2023 | | |
| Procurement Officer: | Alexander Caro | | |
| Address for proposal delivery: Bids must be s | sent via email only to: | | |
| E-mail: procurement-approvisionnement@infc.go | <u>:.ca</u> | | |
| Bid Solicitation Closure: | February 14 th 2023 @ 14:00 (2 PM) E.S.T. | | |
| Infrastructure Canada (INFC) is requesting proposals for IT Asset Management services as detailed in this RFP. INFC will consider entering into a contract with the supplier that submits the most suitable proposal as determined by the evaluation factors set out in this RFP. One (1) contract will be awarded as a result of the evaluation of the responses to this RFP. The qualifying proposal that contains the lowest cost may be accepted. INFC reserves the right to accept any proposal as submitted without prior negotiations. | | | |
| This Request for Proposal consists of the following: | | | |
| This cover page Part 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION Part 2 - BIDDER INSTRUCTIONS Part 3 - BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS Part 4 - EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION Part 5 - CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION Part 6 – SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS Part 7 - RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES | | | |
| Bidder's Name and Address: | | | |
| | | | |
| Telephone number: | E-mail: | | |
| Bidder's Signature: The Bidder's signature indicates acceptance of the terms and conditions governing this Request for Proposal and certifies the content of the attached bidder's proposal is accurate. It also constitutes acknowledgement of receipt and acceptance of all documents listed above. The Bidder also recognizes having read and understood each and all terms and conditions in this RFP contained in the documents or incorporated by reference. | | | |
| Signature | Date | | |

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) FOR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) ASSET MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR INFRASTRUCTURE CANADA

BID SOLICITATION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| PART 1 | 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION | 4 |
|--|--|----------------------|
| 1.1 | | |
| 1.2 1.3 | SUMMARY | |
| PART 2 | 2 - BIDDER INSTRUCTIONS | 6 |
| 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 | STANDARD INSTRUCTIONS, CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS SUBMISSION OF BIDS – ELECTRONIC BIDS ENQUIRIES - BID SOLICITATION FORMER PUBLIC SERVANT APPLICABLE LAWS VOLUMETRIC DATA | 6 6 8 8 |
| 2.7 | BID CHALLENGE AND RECOURSE MECHANISMS | |
| | | |
| 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.4 | BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS SECTION I: TECHNICAL BID SECTION II: FINANCIAL BID SECTION III: CERTIFICATIONS | 10 10 |
| PART 4 | 4 - EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION | 12 |
| 4.1 4.2 4.3 4.4 | EVALUATION PROCEDURES TECHNICAL EVALUATION FINANCIAL EVALUATION BASIS OF SELECTION | 12 13 |
| PART 5 | 5 – CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION | 14 |
| 5.1 5.2 | Certifications Required with the Bid Certifications Precedent to Contract Award and Additional Information | |
| PART | 6 - SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS | 16 |
| 6.1 | SECURITY REQUIREMENTS | 16 |
| PART 7 | 7 - RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES | 17 |
| 7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 | REQUIREMENT TASK AUTHORIZATION STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS SECURITY REQUIREMENTS TERM OF CONTRACT AUTHORITIES (TO BE IDENTIFIED AT CONTRACT AWARD) | 17 19 19 19 |
| 7.7 7.8 | PROACTIVE DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTS WITH FORMER PUBLIC SERVANTS | 21 |

| 7.9 | INVOICING INSTRUCTIONS | 23 |
|------|---|----|
| 7.10 | CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION | 23 |
| 7.11 | APPLICABLE LAWS | 23 |
| 7.12 | PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS | 23 |
| 7.13 | FOREIGN NATIONALS (CANADIAN CONTRACTOR OR FOREIGN CONTRACTOR) | 24 |
| 7.14 | INSURANCE | 24 |
| 7.15 | PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - GENERAL | 24 |
| 7.16 | SAFEGUARDING ELECTRONIC MEDIA | 25 |
| 7.17 | REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES | 25 |
| | GOVERNMENT PROPERTY | |
| 7.19 | DISPUTE RESOLUTION | 26 |
| 7.20 | IDENTIFICATION PROTOCOL RESPONSIBILITIES | 26 |

List of Annexes to the Resulting Contract:

| Annex A - Statement of Work | 27 |
|--|----|
| - Appendix A to Annex A – Tasking Assessment Procedure | |
| - Appendix B to Annex A – Task Authorization Form | 32 |
| - Appendix C to Annex A – Resources Assessment Criteria and Response Table | |
| - Appendix D to Annex A – Certifications at the Task Authorization Stage | |
| Annex B - Basis of Payment | |
| Annex C - Security Requirements Check List | |
| List of Attachments to Part 3 (Bid Preparation Instructions): | |
| - Attachment 3.1 – Bid Submission Form | 42 |

List of Attachments to Part 4 (Evaluation Procedures and Basis of Selection):

| - | ···· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | ······································ | |
|---|--|--|---|
| - | Attachment 4.1 – Bid Evaluat | n Criteria45 | 5 |

List of Attachments to Part 5 (Certifications and Additional Information):

PART 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 Introduction

The bid solicitation is divided into seven parts plus attachments and annexes, as follows:

- Part 1 General Information: provides a general description of the requirement;
- Part 2 Bidder Instructions: provides the instructions, clauses and conditions applicable to the bid solicitation;
- Part 3 Bid Preparation Instructions: provides Bidders with instructions on how to prepare their bid;
- Part 4 Evaluation Procedures and Basis of Selection: indicates how the evaluation will be conducted, the evaluation criteria that must be addressed in the bid, and the basis of selection;
- Part 5 Certifications and Additional Information: includes the certifications and additional information to be provided;
- Part 6 Security, Financial and Other Requirements: includes specific requirements that must be addressed by Bidders; and
- Part 7 Resulting Contract Clauses: includes the clauses and conditions that will apply to any resulting contract.

The Annexes include the Statement of Work and any other annexes.

1.2 Summary

- 1.2.1 This bid solicitation is being issued to satisfy the requirement of Infrastructure Canada (the "Client") for IT Asset Management services.
- 1.2.2 It is intended to result in the award of one (1) contract. The contract will be from contract award to two (2) years later, plus three (3) one-year irrevocable options allowing Canada to extend the term of the contract.
- 1.2.3 Four (4) resources will be evaluated as part of this bid solicitation, as identified in Attachment 4.1. Additional resources will be assessed after contract award once specific tasks are requested of the Contractor. After contract award, the Task Authorization process will be in accordance with Part 7 - Resulting Contract Clauses, the Article titled "Task Authorization (TA)". When a Task Authorization Form is issued, the Contractor will be requested to propose a resource to satisfy the specific requirement based on the TA Form's Statement of Work.
- 1.2.4 The requirement is subject to the provisions of the World Trade Organization Agreement on Government Procurement (WTO-AGP), the Canada-Chile Free Trade Agreement (CCFTA), the Canada-Peru Free Trade Agreement (CPFTA), the Canada-Colombia Free Trade Agreement (CCoIFTA), the Canada-Panama Free Trade Agreement (CPanFTA), the Canada-European Union Comprehensive Economic and Trade Agreement (CETA), the Comprehensive and Progressive Agreement for Trans-Pacific Partnership (CPTPP), the Canadian Free Trade Agreement (CFTA), the Canada-Ukraine Free Trade Agreement (CUFTA), the Canada-United Kingdom Trade Continuity Agreement (Canada-UK TCA) and the Canada-Korea Free Trade Agreement (CKFTA).
- 1.2.5 There are security requirements associated with this requirement. For additional information, consult Part 6 Security, Financial and Other Requirements, and Part 7 Resulting Contract Clauses. For more information on personnel and organization security screening or security

clauses, Bidders should refer to the <u>Contract Security Program</u> of Public Works and Government Services Canada (http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/esc-src/introduction-eng.html) website.

- 1.2.6 The Federal Contractors Program (FCP) for employment equity applies to this procurement; refer to Part 5 Certifications and Additional Information, Part 7 Resulting Contract Clauses and the Attachment 5.1 titled Federal Contractors Program for Employment Equity Certification.
- 1.2.7 IT Asset Management resources are required on an as-and-when-requested basis as follows:

| Category | Category Estimated Number of Resources Required | | Estimated Number of Days per Resource (Each Option Period) | |
|--------------------------------|---|-----|--|--|
| IT Asset Management Services 4 | | 480 | 240 | |
| IT Asset Management Services 2 | | 0 | 240 | |

1.3 Debriefings

Bidders may request a debriefing on the results of the bid solicitation process. Bidders should make the request to the Contracting Authority within 15 working days from receipt of the results of the bid solicitation process. The debriefing may be in writing, by telephone or in person.

PART 2 - BIDDER INSTRUCTIONS

2.1 Standard Instructions, Clauses and Conditions

- 2.1.1 All instructions, clauses and conditions identified in the bid solicitation by number, date and title are set out in the <u>Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual</u> (https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual) issued by Public Works and Government Services Canada.
- 2.1.2 Bidders who submit a bid agree to be bound by the instructions, clauses and conditions of the bid solicitation and accept the clauses and conditions of the resulting contract.
- 2.1.3 SACC Manual Clause 2003 (2022-03-29) Standard Instructions Goods or Services -Competitive Requirements, are incorporated by reference into and form part of the bid solicitation.

2.2 Submission of Bids – Electronic Bids

- 2.2.1 Unless specified otherwise in the RFP, bids must be received by the Contract Authority at the location identified, by the date, time and place indicated on page 1 of the solicitation. Bidders should ensure that the bid includes the company name, return address and bid solicitation number, and that the solicitation closing date and time are clearly visible on the bid.
- 2.2.2 Canada will not be responsible for any electronic bid received at destination after the closing date and time, even if it was submitted before.

2.3 Enquiries - Bid Solicitation

- 2.3.1 All enquiries must be submitted in writing to the Contracting Authority no later than two (2) calendar days before the bid closing date. Enquiries received after that time may not be answered.
- 2.3.2 Bidders should reference as accurately as possible the numbered item of the bid solicitation to which the enquiry relates. Care should be taken by Bidders to explain each question in sufficient detail in order to enable Canada to provide an accurate answer. Technical enquiries that are of a proprietary nature must be clearly marked "proprietary" at each relevant item. Items identified as "proprietary" will be treated as such except where Canada determines that the enquiry is not of a proprietary nature. Canada may edit the question(s) or may request that the Bidder do so, so that the proprietary nature of the question(s) is eliminated and the enquiry can be answered to all Bidders. Enquiries not submitted in a form that can be distributed to all Bidders may not be answered by Canada.

2.4 Former Public Servant

2.4.1 Information Required

Contracts awarded to former public servants (FPS) in receipt of a pension or of a lump sum payment must bear the closest public scrutiny, and reflect fairness in the spending of public funds. In order to comply with Treasury Board policies and directives on contracts awarded to FPSs, bidders must provide the information required below before contract award. If the answer to the questions and, as applicable the information required have not been received by the time the evaluation of bids is completed, Canada will inform the Bidder of a time frame within which to provide the information. Failure to comply with Canada's request and meet the requirement within the prescribed time frame will render the bid non-responsive.

2.4.2 **Definitions**

For the purposes of this clause, "former public servant" is any former member of a department as defined in the *Financial Administration Act*, R.S., 1985, c. F-11, a former member of the Canadian Armed Forces or a former member of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police. A former public servant may be:

- a. an individual;
- b. an individual who has incorporated;
- c. a partnership made of former public servants; or
- d. a sole proprietorship or entity where the affected individual has a controlling or major interest in the entity.

"lump sum payment period" means the period measured in weeks of salary, for which payment has been made to facilitate the transition to retirement or to other employment as a result of the implementation of various programs to reduce the size of the Public Service. The lump sum payment period does not include the period of severance pay, which is measured in a like manner.

"pension" means a pension or annual allowance paid under the <u>Public Service Superannuation</u> <u>Act</u> (PSSA), R.S., 1985, c. P-36, and any increases paid pursuant to the <u>Supplementary</u> <u>Retirement Benefits Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c. S-24 as it affects the PSSA. It does not include pensions payable pursuant to the <u>Canadian Forces Superannuation Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c. C-17, the <u>Defence</u> <u>Services Pension Continuation Act</u>, 1970, c. D-3, the <u>Royal Canadian Mounted Police Pension</u> <u>Continuation Act</u>, 1970, c. R-10, and the <u>Royal Canadian Mounted Police Superannuation Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c. R-11, the <u>Members of Parliament Retiring Allowances Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c. M-5, and that portion of pension payable to the <u>Canada Pension Plan Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c. C-8.

2.4.3 Former Public Servant in Receipt of a Pension

As per the above definitions, is the Bidder a FPS in receipt of a pension? Yes () No ()

If so, the Bidder must provide the following information, for all FPSs in receipt of a pension, as applicable:

- a. name of former public servant;
- b. date of termination of employment or retirement from the Public Service.

By providing this information, Bidders agree that the successful Bidder's status, with respect to being a former public servant in receipt of a pension, will be reported on departmental websites as part of the published proactive disclosure reports in accordance with <u>Contracting Policy Notice: 2019-01</u> and the <u>Guidelines on the Proactive Disclosure of Contracts</u>.

2.4.4 Work Force Adjustment Directive

Is the Bidder a FPS who received a lump sum payment pursuant to the terms of the Work Force Adjustment Directive? **Yes** () **No** ()

If so, the Bidder must provide the following information:

- a. name of former public servant;
- b. conditions of the lump sum payment incentive;

c. date of termination of employment;

- d. amount of lump sum payment;
- e. rate of pay on which lump sum payment is based;
- f. period of lump sum payment including start date, end date and number of weeks;
- g. number and amount (professional fees) of other contracts subject to the restrictions of a work force adjustment program.

2.5 Applicable Laws

- 2.5.1 Any resulting contract must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined, by the laws in force in Ontario.
- 2.5.2 Bidders may, at their discretion, substitute the applicable laws of a Canadian province or territory of their choice without affecting the validity of their bid, by deleting the name of the Canadian province or territory specified and inserting the name of the Canadian province or territory of their choice. If no change is made, it acknowledges that the applicable laws specified are acceptable to the Bidders.

2.6 Volumetric Data

The estimated number of days for each resource has been provided to Bidders to assist them in preparing their bids. The inclusion of this data in this bid solicitation does not represent a commitment by Canada that Canada's future usage of the service identified in this bid solicitation will be consistent with this data. It is provided purely for information purposes.

2.7 Bid Challenge and Recourse Mechanisms

- 2.7.1 Several mechanisms are available to potential suppliers to challenge aspects of the procurement process up to and including contract award.
- 2.7.2 Canada encourages suppliers to first bring their concerns to the attention of the Contracting Authority. Canada's Buy and Sell website, under the heading "Bid Challenge and Recourse Mechanisms" contains information on potential complaint bodies such as:
 - Office of the Procurement Ombudsman (OPO).
 - Canadian International Trade Tribunal (CITT).
- 2.7.3 Suppliers should note that there are **strict deadlines** for filing complaints, and the time periods vary depending on the complaint body in question. Suppliers should therefore act quickly when they want to challenge any aspect of the procurement process.

PART 3 - BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS

3.1 Bid Preparation Instructions

3.1.1 Canada requests that the Bidder submit its bid in separately bound sections as follows:

| Section I: | Technical Bid |
|--------------|---|
| Section II: | Financial Bid |
| Section III: | Certifications |
| Section IV: | Signed RFP Cover Page (1 soft copy in PDF format) |

- 3.1.2 Canada requests that the Bidder submits its bid in accordance with article 2.2 of this RFP. The Bidder must provide its bid in a single transmission. Canada's email servers have the capacity to receive emails up to 20MB in size with multiple documents, up to 4MB per individual attachment.
- 3.1.3 Prices must appear in the financial bid only. No prices must be indicated in any other section of the bid.
- 3.1.4 **Format for Bid.** Canada requests that bidders follow the format instructions described below in the preparation of their bid:
 - a. use a numbering system that corresponds to the bid solicitation;
 - b. include a title page at the front of each volume of the bid that includes the title, date, bid solicitation number, bidder's name and address and contact information of its representative;
 - c. include a table of contents; and
 - d. soft copies will be accepted in any of the following electronic formats:
 - Portable Document Format .pdf,
 - Microsoft Word 97/2000 (.doc),
 - Microsoft Excel 97/2000 (.xls).
- 3.1.5 **Canada's Policy on Green Procurement.** In April 2006, Canada issued a policy directing federal departments and agencies to take the necessary steps to incorporate environmental considerations into the procurement process <u>Policy on Green Procurement</u> (https://www.tbs-sct.gc.ca/pol/doc-eng.aspx?id=32573). To assist Canada in reaching its objectives, bidders must submit electronic copies.

3.1.6 Submission of Only One Bid

- a. A Bidder, including related entities, will be permitted to submit only one bid in response to this bid solicitation. If a Bidder or any related entities participate in more than one bid (participating means being part of the Bidder, not being a subcontractor), Canada will provide those Bidders with two (2) working days to identify the single bid to be considered by Canada. Failure to meet this deadline will result in all the affected bids being disqualified.
- b. For the purposes of this Article, regardless of the jurisdiction where any of the entities concerned is incorporated or otherwise formed as a matter of law (whether that entity is a natural person, corporation, partnership, etc.), an entity will be considered to be "related" to a Bidder if:
 - i. they are the same legal entity (i.e., the same natural person, corporation, partnership, limited liability partnership, etc.);

- ii. they are "related persons" or "affiliated persons" according to the *Canada Income Tax Act*;
- iii. the entities have now or in the two years before bid closing had a fiduciary relationship with one another (either as a result of an agency arrangement or any other form of fiduciary relationship); or
- iv. the entities otherwise do not deal with one another at arm's length, or each of them does not deal at arm's length with the same third party.

3.2 Section I: Technical Bid

- 3.2.1 **Bid Submission Form.** Bidders are requested to include the Bid Submission Form Attachment 3.1 with their bids. It provides a common form in which bidders can provide information required for evaluation and contract award, such as a contact name, the Bidder's Procurement Business Number, the Bidder's status under the Federal Contractors Program for Employment Equity, etc. Using the form to provide this information is not mandatory, but it is recommended. If Canada determines that the information required by the Bid Submission Form is incomplete or requires correction, Canada will provide the Bidder with an opportunity to do so.
- 3.2.2 In their technical bid, Bidders should demonstrate their understanding of the requirements contained in the bid solicitation and explain how they will meet these requirements. Bidders should demonstrate their capability in a thorough, concise and clear manner for carrying out the work.
- 3.2.3 The technical bid should address clearly and in sufficient depth the points that are subject to the evaluation criteria against which the bid will be evaluated. Simply repeating the statement contained in the bid solicitation is not sufficient. In order to facilitate the evaluation of the bid, Canada requests that Bidders address and present topics in the order of the evaluation criteria under the same headings. To avoid duplication, Bidders may refer to different sections of their bids by identifying the specific paragraph and page number where the subject topic has already been addressed.

3.3 Section II: Financial Bid

- 3.3.1 **Pricing.** Bidders must submit their financial bid in accordance with the Pricing Table provided in Attachment 3.2 of this bid solicitation. The total amount of Applicable Taxes must be shown separately. Unless otherwise indicated, Bidders must include a single, firm, all-inclusive per diem rate in Canadian dollars in each cell requiring an entry in the pricing tables.
- 3.3.2 **Variation in Resource Rates By Time Period**. For any given resource category, where the financial tables provided by Canada allow different firm rates to be charged for a resource category during different time periods:
 - a. the rate bid must not increase by more than 5% from one time period to the next; and
 - b. the rate bid for the same resource category during any subsequent time period must not be lower than the rate bid for the time period that includes the first month of the Initial Contract Period.
- 3.3.3 **All Costs to be Included.** The financial bid must include all costs for the requirement described in the bid solicitation for the entire Contract Period, including any option periods. The identification of all necessary equipment, software, peripherals, cabling and components required to meet the requirements of the bid solicitation and the associated costs of these items is the sole responsibility of the Bidder.

3.3.4 **Electronic Payment of Invoices – Bid.** If you are willing to accept payment of invoices by Electronic Payment Instruments, complete Attachment 3.3 Electronic Payment Instruments, to identify which ones are accepted. If Attachment 3.3 Electronic Payment Instruments is not completed, it will be considered as if Electronic Payment Instruments are not being accepted for payment of invoices. Acceptance of Electronic Payment Instruments will not be considered as an evaluation criterion.

3.4 Section III: Certifications

Bidders must submit the certifications and additional information required under Part 5.

PART 4 - EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION

4.1 Evaluation Procedures

- 4.1.1 Bids will be evaluated in accordance with the entire requirement of the bid solicitation including the technical and financial evaluation criteria. There are several steps in the evaluation process, which are described below. Even though the evaluation and selection will be conducted in steps, the fact that Canada has proceeded to a later step does not mean that Canada has conclusively determined that the Bidder has successfully passed all the previous steps. Canada may conduct steps of the evaluation in parallel.
- 4.1.2 An evaluation team composed of representatives of Canada will evaluate the bids on behalf of Canada. Canada may hire any independent consultant, or use any Government resources, to evaluate any bid. Not all members of the evaluation team will necessarily participate in all aspects of the evaluation.
- 4.1.3 In addition to any other time periods established in the bid solicitation:
 - a. **Requests for Clarification.** If Canada seeks clarification or verification from the Bidder about its bid, the Bidder will have two (2) working days (or a longer period if specified in writing by the Contracting Authority) to provide the necessary information to Canada. Failure to meet this deadline will result in the bid being declared non-responsive.
 - b. **Requests for Further Information**. If Canada requires additional information in order to do any of the following pursuant to the Section entitled "Conduct of Evaluation" in 2003, Standard Instructions Goods or Services Competitive Requirements:
 - i. verify any or all information provided by the Bidder in its bid; or
 - ii. contact any or all references supplied by the Bidder (e.g., references named in the résumés of individual resources) to verify and validate any information submitted by the Bidder,

the Bidder must provide the information requested by Canada within two (2) working days of a request by the Contracting Authority.

c. **Extension of Time**. If additional time is required by the Bidder, the Contracting Authority may grant an extension in his or her sole discretion.

4.2 Technical Evaluation

- 4.2.1 **Mandatory Technical Criteria**. Each bid will be reviewed to determine whether it meets the mandatory requirements of the bid solicitation. Any element of the bid solicitation that is identified specifically with the words "must" or "mandatory" is a mandatory requirement. Bids that do not comply with each and every mandatory requirement will be considered non-responsive and be disqualified. The mandatory evaluation criteria are described in Attachment 4.1 Bid Evaluation Criteria.
- 4.2.2 **Point Rated Technical Criteria**. Each bid will be rated by assigning a score to the rated requirements, which are identified in the bid solicitation by the word "rated" or by reference to a score. Bidders who fail to submit complete bids with all the information requested by this bid solicitation will be rated accordingly. The rated requirements are described in Attachment 4.1 Bid Evaluation Criteria.

4.3 Financial Evaluation

- 4.3.1 The price of the bid will be evaluated in Canadian dollars, Applicable Taxes excluded, FOB destination, Canadian customs duties and excise taxes included.
- 4.3.2 The financial evaluation will be conducted using the firm per diem rates provided by the responsive bid(s).
- 4.3.3 The total estimated contract value, including all option periods, will be used to determine the lowest cost bid.

4.4 Basis of Selection

4.4.1 **Basis of Selection – Minimum Point Rating**

- a. To be declared responsive, a bid must:
 - i. comply with all the requirements of the bid solicitation; and
 - ii. meet all mandatory technical evaluation criteria; and
 - iii. obtain the required minimum points for the technical evaluation criteria which are subject to point rating.
- b. Bids not meeting i. or ii. or iii. will be declared non-responsive.

PART 5 – CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Bidders must provide the required certifications and additional information to be awarded a contract.

The certifications provided by Bidders to Canada are subject to verification by Canada at all times. Unless specified otherwise, Canada will declare a bid non-responsive, or will declare a contractor in default if any certification made by the Bidder is found to be untrue, whether made knowingly or unknowingly, during the bid evaluation period or during the contract period.

The Contracting Authority will have the right to ask for additional information to verify the Bidder's certifications. Failure to comply and to cooperate with any request or requirement imposed by the Contracting Authority will render the bid non-responsive or constitute a default under the Contract.

5.1 Certifications Required with the Bid

Bidders must submit the following duly completed certifications as part of their bid:

5.1.1 **Integrity Provisions - Declaration of Convicted Offences.** In accordance with the Integrity Provisions of the Standard Instructions, all bidders must provide with their bid, **if applicable**, the Integrity declaration form available on the Forms for the Integrity Regime website (http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/declaration-eng.html), to be given further consideration in the procurement process.

5.2 Certifications Precedent to Contract Award and Additional Information

The certifications and additional information listed below should be submitted with the bid but may be submitted afterwards. If any of these required certifications or additional information is not completed and submitted as requested, the Contracting Authority will inform the Bidder of a time frame within which to provide the information. Failure to provide the certifications or the additional information listed below within the time frame specified will render the bid non-responsive.

5.2.1 Federal Contractors Program for Employment Equity - Bid Certification

- a. By submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that the Bidder, and any of the Bidder's members if the Bidder is a Joint Venture, is not named on the Federal Contractors Program (FCP) for employment equity "FCP Limited Eligibility to Bid" list available at the bottom of the page of the <u>Employment and Social Development Canada (ESDC) - Labour's</u> website.
- b. Canada will have the right to declare a bid non-responsive if the Bidder, or any member of the Bidder if the Bidder is a Joint Venture, appears on the "FCP Limited Eligibility to Bid list at the time of contract award.
- c. Canada will also have the right to terminate the Contract for default if a Contractor, or any member of the Contractor if the Contractor is a Joint Venture, appears on the "FCP Limited Eligibility to Bid" list during the period of the Contract.
- d. The Bidder must provide the Contracting Authority with a completed Attachment 5.1 titled <u>Federal Contractors Program for Employment Equity - Certification</u>, before contract award. If the Bidder is a Joint Venture, the Bidder must provide the Contracting Authority with a completed Attachment 5.1 Federal Contractors Program for Employment Equity - Certification, for each member of the Joint Venture.

5.2.2 Status and Availability of Resources

a. The Bidder certifies that, should it be awarded a contract as a result of the bid solicitation, every individual proposed in its bid will be available to perform the Work as

required by Canada's representatives and at the time specified in the bid solicitation or agreed to with Canada's representatives. If for reasons beyond its control, the Bidder is unable to provide the services of an individual named in its bid, the Bidder may propose a substitute with similar qualifications and experience. The Bidder must advise the Contracting Authority of the reason for the substitution and provide the name, qualifications and experience of the proposed replacement. For the purposes of this clause, only the following reasons will be considered as beyond the control of the Bidder: death, sickness, maternity and parental leave, retirement, resignation, dismissal for cause or termination of an agreement for default.

- b. If the Bidder has proposed any individual who is not an employee of the Bidder, the Bidder certifies that it has the permission from that individual to propose his/her services in relation to the Work to be performed and to submit his/her résumé to Canada. The Bidder must, upon request from the Contracting Authority, provide a written confirmation, signed by the individual, of the permission given to the Bidder and of his/her availability. Failure to comply with the request may result in the bid being declared non-responsive.
- 5.2.3 **Education and Experience**. By submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that all the information provided in the résumés and supporting material submitted with its bid, particularly the information pertaining to education, achievements, experience and work history, has been verified by the Bidder to be true and accurate. Furthermore, the Bidder warrants that every individual proposed by the Bidder for the requirement is capable of performing the Work described in the resulting contract.
- 5.2.4 **Certification of Language Bilingual**. By submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that, should it be awarded a contract as result of the bid solicitation, every individual proposed in its bid will be fluent in both French and English. The individual(s) proposed must be able to communicate orally and in writing in both official languages without any assistance and with minimal errors.

PART 6 - SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS

6.1 Security Requirements

- 6.1.1 At the date of bid closing, the following conditions must be met:
 - a. the Bidder must hold a valid organization security clearance as indicated in Part 7 -Resulting Contract Clauses;
 - the Bidder's proposed individuals requiring access to classified or protected information, assets or sensitive work sites must meet the security requirements as indicated in Part 7
 Resulting Contract Clauses; and
 - c. the Bidder must provide the name of all individuals who will require access to classified or protected information, assets or sensitive work sites.
- 6.1.2 For additional information on security requirements, Bidders should refer to the Contract Security Program of Public Works and Government Services Canada (<u>http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/esc-src/introduction-eng.html</u>) website.

PART 7 - RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES

The following clauses and conditions apply to and form part of any contract resulting from the bid solicitation.

7.1 Requirement

- 7.1.1 (the "**Contractor**") agrees to supply to the Client the services described in the Contract, including the Statement of Work, in accordance with, and at the prices set out in, the Contract. This includes providing professional services as and when requested by Canada, to one or more locations to be designated by Canada, excluding any locations in areas subject to any of the Comprehensive Land Claims Agreements.
- 7.1.2 **Client**: Under the Contract, the "**Client**" is Infrastructure Canada.
- 7.1.3 **Reorganization of Client**. The Contractor's obligation to perform the Work will not be affected by (and no additional fees will be payable as a result of) the renaming, reorganization, reconfiguration, or restructuring of any Client. The reorganization, reconfiguration and restructuring of the Client includes the privatization of the Client, its merger with another entity, or its dissolution, where that dissolution is followed by the creation of another entity or entities with mandates similar to the original Client. In connection with any form of reorganization, Canada may designate another department or government body as the Contracting Authority or Technical Authority, as required to reflect the new roles and responsibilities associated with the reorganization.
- 7.1.4 **Defined Terms**. Words and expressions defined in the General Conditions or Supplemental General Conditions and used in the Contract have the meanings given to them in the General Conditions or Supplemental General Conditions. Any reference to an Identified User in the Supply Arrangement is a reference to the Client. Also, any reference to a "deliverable" or "deliverables" includes all documentation outlined in this Contract. A reference to a "local office" of the Contractor means an office having at least one full-time employee that is not a shared resource working at that location.

7.2 Task Authorization

The Work or a portion of the Work to be performed under the Contract will be on an "as and when requested basis" using a Task Authorization (TA). The Work described in the TA must be in accordance with the scope of the Contract.

7.2.1 Task Authorization Process

- a. The Technical Authority will provide the Contractor with a description of the task using the "Task Authorization" form specified in Appendix B to Annex A.
- b. The TA will contain the details of the activities to be performed. The TA will also include the applicable basis and methods of payment as specified in the Contract.
- c. The Contractor must provide the Technical Authority, within five (5) calendar days of its receipt, the proposed total estimated cost for performing the task and a breakdown of that cost, established in accordance with the Basis of Payment specified in the Contract.
- d. The Contractor must not commence work until a TA authorized by the Technical Authority and the Contracting Authority has been received by the Contractor. The Contractor acknowledges that any work performed before a TA has been received will be done at the Contractor's own risk.

7.2.2 Minimum Work Guarantee - All the Work - Task Authorizations

a. In this clause,

- i. "Maximum Contract Value" means the amount specified on page 1 of the Contract, excluding Applicable Taxes; and
- ii. "Minimum Contract Value" means 5% of the Maximum Contract Value.
- b. Canada's obligation under the Contract is to request Work in the amount of the Minimum Contract Value or, at Canada's option, to pay the Contractor at the end of the Contract in accordance with paragraph 7.2.2 c. In consideration of such obligation, the Contractor agrees to stand in readiness throughout the Contract period to perform the Work described in the Contract. Canada's maximum liability for work performed under the Contract must not exceed the Maximum Contract Value, unless an increase is authorized in writing by the Contracting Authority.
- c. In the event that Canada does not request work in the amount of the Minimum Contract Value during the period of the Contract, Canada must pay the Contractor the difference between the Minimum Contract Value and the total cost of the Work requested.
- d. Canada will have no obligation to the Contractor under this clause if Canada terminates the Contract in whole or in part for default.

7.2.3 **Periodic Usage Reports - Contracts with Task Authorizations**

- a. The Contractor must compile and maintain records on its provision of services to the federal government under authorized Task Authorizations issued under the Contract. The Contractor must provide this data in accordance with the reporting requirements detailed below. If some data is not available, the reason must be indicated. If services are not provided during a given period, the Contractor must still provide a "nil" report. The data must be submitted on a quarterly basis to the Contracting Authority. From time to time, the Contracting Authority may also require an interim report during a reporting period.
- b. The quarterly periods are defined as follows:
 - i. 1st quarter: April 1 to June 30;
 - ii. 2nd quarter: July 1 to September 30;
 - iii. 3rd quarter: October 1 to December 31; and
 - iv. 4th quarter: January 1 to March 31.

The data must be submitted to the Contracting Authority no later than 10 calendar days after the end of the reporting period.

- c. Each report must contain the following information for each validly issued TA (as amended):
 - i. the authorized task number or task revision number(s), if applicable;
 - ii. a title or a brief description of each authorized task;
 - iii. the name of each resource involved in performing the task, as applicable;
 - iv. the total estimated cost specified in the authorized TA of each task, exclusive of Applicable Taxes;
 - v. the total amount, exclusive of Applicable Taxes, expended to date against each authorized task;
 - vi. the start and completion date for each authorized task; and
 - vii. the active status of each authorized task, as applicable (e.g., in progress, cancelled, completed, etc.).

- d. Each report must also contain the following cumulative information for all the validly issued TAs (as amended):
 - i. the amount (exclusive of Applicable Taxes) specified in the contract (as last amended, as applicable) as Canada's total liability to the contractor for all authorized TAs; and
 - ii. the total amount, exclusive of Applicable Taxes, expended to date against all authorized TAs.

7.3 Standard Clauses and Conditions

All clauses and conditions identified in the Contract by number, date and title are set out in the <u>Standard</u> <u>Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual</u> (https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standardacquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual) issued by Public Works and Government Services Canada.

7.3.1 General Conditions

SACC Manual clause 2035 (2022-05-12), General Conditions - Higher Complexity - Services, apply to and form part of the Contract.

7.4 Security Requirements

The following security requirements (SRCL and related clauses provided by the Contract Security Program) apply and form part of the Contract.

- 1. The Contractor must, at all times during the performance of the Contract, hold a valid Designated Organization Screening (DOS), issued by the Contract Security Program (CSP), Public Works and Government Services Canada (PWGSC).
- 2. The Contractor personnel requiring access to PROTECTED information, assets or sensitive site(s) must EACH hold a valid RELIABILITY STATUS, granted or approved by the CSP, PWGSC.
- 3. The Contractor MUST NOT remove any PROTECTED information or assets from the identified site(s), and the Contractor must ensure that its personnel are made aware of and comply with this restriction.
- 4. Subcontracts which contain security requirements are NOT to be awarded without the prior written permission of the CSP, PWGSC.
- 5. The Contractor must comply with the provisions of the:

a) Security Requirements Check List and security guide (if applicable), attached at Annex C;

b) Contract Security Manual (Latest Edition).

7.5 Term of Contract

7.5.1 **Period of the Contract**

- a. **Contract Period**. The **"Contract Period"** is the entire period of time during which the Contractor is obliged to perform the Work, which includes:
 - i. The **"Initial Contract Period**", which begins on the date the Contract is awarded and ends two (2) years later; and
 - ii. The period during which the Contract is extended, if Canada chooses to exercise any options set out in the Contract.

b. Option to Extend the Contract

- i. The Contractor grants to Canada the irrevocable option to extend the term of the Contract by up to three (3) additional one-year periods under the same conditions. The Contractor agrees that, during the extended period of the Contract, it will be paid in accordance with the applicable provisions as set out in the Basis of Payment.
- ii. Canada may exercise this option at any time by sending a written notice to the Contractor before the expiry date of the Contract. The option may only be exercised by the Contracting Authority, and will be evidenced for administrative purposes only, through a contract amendment.

7.6 Authorities (to be identified at Contract award)

7.6.1 **Contracting Authority**

The Contracting Authority for the Contract is:

| Name: | |
|-----------------|--|
| Title: | |
| Address: | |
| Telephone: | |
| Facsimile: | |
| E-mail address: | |

The Contracting Authority is responsible for the management of the Contract and any changes to the Contract must be authorized in writing by the Contracting Authority. The Contractor must not perform work in excess of or outside the scope of the Contract based on verbal or written requests or instructions from anybody other than the Contracting Authority.

7.6.2 Technical Authority

The Technical Authority for the Contract is:

| Name: | |
|-----------------|--|
| Title: | |
| Address: | |
| Telephone: | |
| Facsimile: | |
| E-mail address: | |

The Technical Authority is the representative of the department or agency for whom the Work is being carried out under the Contract and is responsible for all matters concerning the technical content of the Work under the Contract. Technical matters may be discussed with the Technical Authority; however the Technical Authority has no authority to authorize changes to the scope of the Work. Changes to the scope of the Work can only be made through a contract amendment issued by the Contracting Authority.

7.6.3 Contractor's Representative

| Name: | |
|-----------------|--|
| Title: | |
| Address: | |
| Telephone: | |
| Facsimile: | |
| E-mail address: | |

7.7 Proactive Disclosure of Contracts with Former Public Servants

By providing information on its status, with respect to being a former public servant in receipt of a Public Service Superannuation Act (PSSA) pension, the Contractor has agreed that this information will be reported on departmental websites as part of the published proactive disclosure reports, in accordance with Contracting Policy Notice: 2019-01 of the Treasury Board Secretariat of Canada.

7.8 Payment

7.8.1 Basis of Payment

- a. The Contractor will be paid for the Work specified in the authorized task authorization, in accordance with the Basis of Payment at Annex B.
- b. Canada's liability to the Contractor under the authorized task authorization must not exceed the ceiling price specified in the authorized task authorization. Custom duties are included and Applicable Taxes are extra.
- c. No increase in the liability of Canada or in the price of the Work specified in the authorized task authorization resulting from any design changes, modifications or interpretations of the Work will be authorized or paid to the Contractor unless these design changes, modifications or interpretations have been authorized, in writing, by the Contracting Authority before their incorporation into the Work.
- 7.8.2 **Professional Services provided under a Task Authorization with a Maximum Price**: For professional services requested by Canada, in accordance with a validly issued Task Authorization, Canada will pay the Contractor, in arrears, up to the Maximum Price for the TA, for actual time worked and any resulting deliverables in accordance with the firm all-inclusive per diem rates set out in Annex B, Basis of Payment, Applicable Taxes extra. Partial days will be prorated based on actual hours worked based on a 7.5-hour workday.
- 7.8.3 **Travel and Living Expenses National Joint Council Travel Directive.** The Contractor will be reimbursed its authorized travel and living expenses reasonably and properly incurred in the performance of the Work, at cost, without any allowance for profit and/or administrative overhead, in accordance with the meal and private vehicle expenses provided in Appendices B, C and D of the <u>National Joint Council Travel Directive</u> and with the other provisions of the directive referring to "travellers", rather than those referring to "employees". All travel must have the prior authorization of the Technical Authority. Travel requests will only be considered for a work location which is located more than 100 kilometers from National Capital Region. The Contractor will be paid for actual time spent travelling in accordance with the firm per diem rate set out in Annex B which per diem is based on a 7.5-hour workday. All payments are subject to government audit.
- 7.8.4 **Competitive Award**: The Contractor acknowledges that the Contract has been awarded as a result of a competitive process. No additional charges will be allowed to compensate for errors, oversights, misconceptions or underestimates made by the Contractor when bidding for the Contract.
- 7.8.5 **Contractor's Firm Per Diem Rates**: The Contractor agrees that the rates set out in Annex B remain firm throughout the Contract Period, except as may be provided for in the express terms of the contract. In reference to Article 18(1) of SACC General Conditions 2035, the Contractor acknowledges that its obligation to provide services in accordance with the firm rates set out in Annex B is unaffected by the application of any existing law or any new law which may come into effect during the Contract Period.
- 7.8.6 **Professional Services Rates**: In Canada's experience, bidders from time to time propose rates at the time of bidding for one or more Resource Categories that they later refuse to honour, on the basis that these rates do not allow them to recover their own costs and/or make a profit. This denies Canada of the benefit of the awarded contract. If the Contractor does not respond or

refuses to provide an individual with the qualifications described in the Contract within the time described in the Contract (or proposes instead to provide someone from an alternate category at a different rate), whether or not Canada terminates the Contract as a whole or in part or chooses to exercise any of the rights provided to it under the general conditions, Canada may impose sanctions or take other measures in accordance with the PWGSC Vendor Performance Corrective Measure Policy (or equivalent) then in effect, which measures may include an assessment that results in conditions applied against the Contractor to be fulfilled before doing further business with Canada, or full debarment of the Contractor from bidding on future requirements.

7.8.7 **Purpose of Estimates**: All estimated costs contained in the Contract are included solely for the administrative purposes of Canada and do not represent a commitment on the part of Canada to purchase goods or services in these amounts. Any commitment to purchase specific amounts or values of goods or services is described elsewhere in the Contract.

7.8.8 Limitation of Expenditure - Cumulative Total of all Task Authorizations

- a. Canada's total liability to the Contractor under the Contract for all validly issued Task Authorizations (TAs), inclusive of any revisions, must not exceed the amount set out on page 1 of the Contract, less any Applicable taxes. With respect to the amount set out on page 1 of the Contract, Customs duties are included and Applicable Taxes are included.
- b. No increase in the total liability of Canada will be authorized or paid to the Contractor unless an increase has been approved, in writing, by the Contracting Authority.
- c. The Contractor must notify the Contracting Authority in writing as to the adequacy of this sum:
 - i. when it is 75 percent committed, or
 - ii. four (4) months before the contract expiry date, or
 - iii. as soon as the Contractor considers that the sum is inadequate for the completion of the Work required in all authorized TAs, inclusive of any revisions, whichever comes first.
- d. If the notification is for inadequate contract funds, the Contractor must provide to the Contracting Authority, a written estimate for the additional funds required. Provision of such information by the Contractor does not increase Canada's liability.
- 7.8.9 **Monthly Payment.** Canada will pay the Contractor on a monthly basis for work performed during the month covered by the invoice in accordance with the payment provisions of the Contract if:
 - a. an accurate and complete invoice and any other documents required by the Contract have been submitted in accordance with the invoicing instructions provided in the Contract;
 - b. all such documents have been verified by Canada; and
 - c. the Work performed has been accepted by Canada.
- 7.8.10 **Electronic Payment of Invoices Contract.** The Contractor accepts to be paid using any of the following Electronic Payment Instrument(s) (to be updated at Contract award):
 - a. Direct Deposit (Domestic and International);
 - b. Electronic Data Interchange (EDI);
 - c. Wire Transfer (International Only).
- 7.8.11 **Time Verification.** Time charged and the accuracy of the Contractor's time recording system are subject to verification by Canada, before or after payment is made to the Contractor. If verification is done after payment, the Contractor must repay any overpayment, at Canada's request.

7.8.12 No Responsibility to Pay for Work not performed due to Closure of Government Offices

- a. Where the Contractor, its employees, subcontractors, or agents are providing services on government premises under the Contract and those premises are inaccessible because of the evacuation or closure of government offices, and as a result no work is performed, Canada is not responsible for paying the Contractor for work that otherwise would have been performed if there had been no evacuation or closure.
- b. If, as a result of any strike or lock-out, the Contractor or its employees, subcontractors or agents cannot obtain access to government premises and, as a result, no work is performed, Canada is not responsible for paying the Contractor for work that otherwise would have been performed if the Contractor had been able to gain access to the premises.

7.9 Invoicing Instructions

- 7.9.1 The Contractor must submit invoices in accordance with the information required in the General Conditions.
- 7.9.2 The Contractor's invoice must include a separate line item for each subparagraph in the Basis of Payment provision, and must show all applicable Task Authorization numbers.
- 7.9.3 By submitting invoices, the Contractor is certifying that the goods and services have been delivered and that all charges are in accordance with the Basis of Payment provision of the Contract, including any charges for work performed by subcontractors.
- 7.9.4 Invoices must be distributed as follows:

One (1) copy must be forwarded to the Technical Authority identified under the section entitled "Authorities" of the Contract.

7.10 Certifications and Additional Information

- 7.10.1 **Compliance.** Unless specified otherwise, the continuous compliance with the certifications provided by the Contractor in its bid or precedent to contract award, and the ongoing cooperation in providing additional information are conditions of the Contract and failure to comply will constitute the Contractor in default. Certifications are subject to verification by Canada during the entire period of the Contract.
- 7.10.2 Federal Contractors Program for Employment Equity Default by the Contractor. The Contractor understands and agrees that, when an Agreement to Implement Employment Equity (AIEE) exists between the Contractor and Employment and Social Development Canada (ESDC)-Labour, the AIEE must remain valid during the entire period of the Contract. If the AIEE becomes invalid, the name of the Contractor will be added to the "FCP Limited Eligibility to Bid" list. The imposition of such a sanction by ESDC will constitute the Contractor in default as per the terms of the Contract.

7.11 Applicable Laws

The Contract must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined, by the laws in force in *(to be inserted at contract award)*.

7.12 **Priority of Documents**

If there is a discrepancy between the wording of any documents that appear on the list, the wording of the document that first appears on the list has priority over the wording of any document that subsequently appears on the list.

a. The Articles of Agreement;

- b. the general conditions, *SACC Manual* clause 2035 (2022-05-12), General Conditions Higher Complexity Services;
- c. Annex A, Statement of Work, including its Appendices as follows:
 - i. Appendix A to Annex A Tasking Assessment Procedure;
 - ii. Appendix B to Annex A Task Authorization (TA) Form;
 - iii. Appendix C to Annex A Resource Assessment Criteria and Response Table;
 - iv. Appendix D to Annex A Certifications at the TA stage;
- d. Annex B, Basis of Payment;
- e. Annex C, Security Requirements Check List;
- f. the signed Task Authorizations (including all of its annexes, if any);
- g. the Contractor's bid dated _____, (insert date of bid) (If the bid was clarified or amended, insert at the time of contract award: ", as clarified on _____" or ", as amended on _____" and insert date(s) of clarification(s) or amendment(s)).
- 7.13 Foreign Nationals (Canadian Contractor *OR* Foreign Contractor) (to be completed at contract award)

SACC Manual clause <u>A2000C</u> (*insert date*) Foreign Nationals (Canadian Contractor)

OR

SACC Manual clause <u>A2001C</u> (insert date) Foreign Nationals (Foreign Contractor)

7.14 Insurance

SACC Manual clause G1005C (2016-01-28) - Insurance - No Specific Requirement

7.15 Professional Services - General

- 7.15.1 The Contractor must provide professional services on request as specified in this Contract. All resources provided by the Contractor must meet the qualifications described in the Contract (including those relating to previous experience, professional designation, education, language proficiency and security clearance) and must be competent to provide the required services by any delivery dates described in the Contract.
- 7.15.2 If the Contractor fails to deliver any deliverable (excluding delivery of a specific individual) or complete any task described in the Contract on time, in addition to any other rights or remedies available to Canada under the Contract or the law, Canada may notify the Contractor of the deficiency, in which case the Contractor must submit a written plan to the Technical Authority within 10 working days detailing the actions that the Contractor will undertake to remedy the deficiency. The Contractor must prepare and implement the plan at its own expense.
- 7.15.3 In General Conditions 2035, the Article titled "Replacement of Specific Individuals" is deleted and the following applies instead:

Replacement of Specific Individuals

a. If the Contractor is unable to provide the services of any specific individual identified in the Contract to perform the services, the Contractor must within five working days of having this knowledge, the individual's departure or failure to commence Work (or, if Canada has requested the replacement, within 10 working days of Canada's notice of the requirement for a replacement) provide to the Contracting Authority:

- (A) the name, qualifications and experience of a proposed replacement immediately available for Work; and
- (B) security information on the proposed replacement as specified by Canada, if applicable.

The replacement must have qualifications and experience that meet or exceed those obtained for the original resource.

- b. Subject to an Excusable Delay, where Canada becomes aware that a specific individual identified under the Contract to provide services has not been provided or is not performing, the Contracting Authority may elect to:
 - (A) exercise Canada's rights or remedies under the Contract or at law, including terminating the Contract in whole or in part for default under the Article titled "Default of the Contractor", or
 - (B) assess the information provided under 7.15.3 a. above or, if it has not yet been provided, require the Contractor to propose a replacement to be rated by the Technical Authority. The replacement must have qualifications and experience that are similar or exceed those obtained for the original resource and be acceptable to Canada. Upon assessment of the replacement, Canada may accept the replacement, exercise the rights in b.(A) above, or require another replacement in accordance with this sub-article 7.15.3.

Where an Excusable Delay applies, Canada may require 7.15.3 b.(B) above instead of terminating under the "Excusable Delay" Article. An Excusable Delay does not include resource unavailability due to allocation of the resource to another Contract or project (including those for the Crown) being performed by the Contractor or any of its affiliates.

- c. The Contractor must not, in any event, allow performance of the Work by unauthorized replacement persons. The Contracting Authority may order that an original or replacement resource stop performing the Work. In such a case, the Contractor must immediately comply with the order. The fact that the Contracting Authority does not order a resource to stop performing the Work does not relieve the Contractor from its responsibility to meet the requirements of the Contract.
- d. The obligations in this article apply despite any changes that Canada may have made to the Client's operating environment.

7.16 Safeguarding Electronic Media

- 7.16.1 Before using them on Canada's equipment or sending them to Canada, the Contractor must use a regularly updated product to scan electronically all electronic media used to perform the Work for computer viruses and other coding intended to cause malfunctions. The Contractor must notify Canada if any electronic media used for the Work are found to contain computer viruses or other coding intended to cause malfunctions.
- 7.16.2 If magnetically recorded information or documentation is damaged or lost while in the Contractor's care or at any time before it is delivered to Canada in accordance with the Contract, including accidental erasure, the Contractor must immediately replace it at its own expense.

7.17 Representations and Warranties

The Contractor made statements regarding its own and its proposed resources' experience and expertise in its bid that resulted in the award of the Contract and the issuance of TAs. The Contractor represents and warrants that all those statements are true and acknowledges that Canada relied on those statements in awarding the Contract and adding work to it through TAs. The Contractor also represents and warrants that it has, and all its resources and subcontractors that perform the Work have, and at all times during the Contract Period they will have and maintain, the skills, qualifications, expertise and experience necessary to perform and manage the Work in accordance with the Contract, and that the

Contractor (and any resources or subcontractors it uses) has previously performed similar services for other customers.

7.18 Government Property

Canada agrees to supply the Contractor with the items listed below (the "Government Property"). The section of the General Conditions entitled "Government Property" also applies to the use of the Government Property by the Contractor:

a. Equipment and facilities as stipulated in section Location of Work, of Annex A, Statement of Work.

7.19 Dispute Resolution

- 7.19.1 The parties agree to maintain open and honest communication about the Work throughout and after the performance of the contract.
- 7.19.2 The parties agree to consult and co-operate with each other in the furtherance of the contract and promptly notify the other party or parties and attempt to resolve problems or differences that may arise.
- 7.19.3 If the parties cannot resolve a dispute through consultation and cooperation, the parties agree to consult a neutral third party offering alternative dispute resolution services to attempt to address the dispute.
- 7.19.4 Options of alternative dispute resolution services can be found on Canada's Buy and Sell website under the heading "<u>Dispute Resolution</u>".

7.20 Identification Protocol Responsibilities

The Contractor will be responsible for ensuring that each of its agents, representatives or subcontractors (hereinafter referred to as Contractor Representatives) complies with the following self-identification requirements:

- 7.20.1 Contractor Representatives who attend a Government of Canada meeting (whether internal or external to Canada's offices) must identify themselves as Contractor Representatives prior to the commencement of the meeting, to ensure that each meeting participant is aware of the fact that the individual is not an employee of the Government of Canada.
- 7.20.2 During the performance of any Work at a Government of Canada site, each Contractor Representative must be clearly identified at all times as being a Contractor Representative.
- 7.20.3 If a Contractor Representative requires the use of the Government of Canada's e-mail system in the performance of the Work, then the individual must clearly identify him or herself as an agent or subcontractor of the Contractor in all electronic mail in the signature block as well as under "Properties." This identification protocol must also be used in all other correspondence, communication, and documentation.
- 7.20.4 If Canada determines that the Contractor is in breach of any obligation stated in this Article, upon written notice from Canada the Contractor must submit a written action plan describing corrective measures it will implement to eliminate the recurrence of the problem. The Contractor will have five (5) working days to deliver the action plan to the Client and the Contracting Authority, and twenty (20) working days to rectify the underlying problem.
- 7.20.5 In addition to any other rights it has under the Contract, Canada may terminate the Contract for default if the corrective measures required of the Contractor described above are not met.

ANNEX A

STATEMENT OF WORK

Organizational Background

1. Infrastructure Canada (INFC) works closely with all levels of government and other partners to enable investments in social, green, transit and other core public infrastructure as well as infrastructure that helps increase trade and grow the economy. INFC provides long-term predictable support to help Canadians benefit from world-class, modern public infrastructure. The Department achieves this by making investments, building partnerships, developing policies, delivering programs, and fostering knowledge about public infrastructure in Canada.

2. Since it was established in 2002, the Department has been an important funding partner, working with provinces, territories, municipalities, the private sector and non-profit organizations, along with other federal departments and agencies, to help build and revitalize infrastructure that supports modern, inclusive and diverse communities – and a strong Canada.

Directorate of Operations Support, Security and Information Management Services

3. The Manager IT Services within the Corporate Services branch of the Directorate of Operations Support, Security and Information Management Services is responsible for providing quality service to INFC personnel with respect to, among others, computers, cell phones, remote connection, imaging, security updates and patches, audio-visual, video conferencing, surface hub equipment, procurement of IT software and hardware, and annual renewal of all corporate tools.

4. IT Services is also responsible to provide IT equipment to INFC employees working remotely.

Requirement

5. <u>Summary of Services</u>. IT Services requires Asset Management resources to work with INFC personnel to manage and track IT inventory and to assist in distributing/shipping IT equipment to personnel across Canada. They will be required to wipe content on returned computers and image new computers. The resources will also assist during the revamp of the onsite workspace, evergreening of computers and future upcoming projects.

6. <u>Resources</u>.

| Category | Estimated Number of Resources Required | Estimated Number of Days per Resource (Initial Contract Period (2 years)) | Estimated Number of Days per Resource (Each Option Period) | |
|---|--|--|--|--|
| IT Asset Management Services – Initial requirement | 4 | 480 | 240 | |
| IT Asset Management Services – Additional requirements | 2 | 0 | 240 | |

Tasks and Deliverables

- 7. The IT Asset Management resource will be responsible for, but not limited to, the following tasks:
 - a. ensure all ordered goods have been delivered;
 - b. add barcodes/asset tags to IT equipment, i.e., tablets, monitors, etc.;
 - c. update the Cherwell asset management system;
 - d. make daily trips to various storage rooms within the same building to gather equipment for shipping to end-users;

- e. ensure storage rooms are well-stocked with equipment by informing the manager when stock is low; the specific amount will be provided by the manager;
- f. package and ship IT equipment to INFC employees via the Canada Post online account (electronic shipping tool) and/or UPS, FedEx, etc.;
- g. unpack returned IT equipment from departed employees; clean all equipment with proper disinfectant; store the equipment in the suggested storage rooms for future usage;
- h. remove or disconnect/reconnect monitors, docking station, keyboard and mouse in cubicles and closed offices when required;
- i. follow specific instructions provided to securely wipe the content of older computers before shipping them to Computers for Schools; and
- j. follow specific instructions provided to image new computers before they are assigned to personnel.

Location of Work

8. The work must be conducted on-site at INFC premises at 180 Kent Street, Ottawa, ON.

9. INFC will provide any necessary equipment to the Contractor resources after contract award.

10. INFC shall provide, subject to normal security requirements, and only to the specified Contractor resources, access to identified databases or applications resident on INFC computers or networks for the sole purpose of executing the tasks associated with this contract. INFC, at its sole discretion, will identify the nature and characteristics of such access.

Language Requirements - Bilingual

11. All resources must be fluent in both official languages. Fluent is defined as being able to communicate orally and in writing without any assistance and with minimal errors.

Contract Management and Reporting

12. The Contractor must, at no additional cost to INFC, designate an individual as its representative and single point of contact responsible for the management of the contract and its business relationship with INFC.

13. The Contractor must prepare and provide to the Technical Authority (in support of the invoice), monthly progress reports in a format acceptable to the Technical Authority. At a minimum, each report must document the following information:

- a. A copy of the Contractor resources' monthly time sheets.
- b. Any potential issues which could cause problems related to the work required.

Travel and Living

14. Travel to INFC regional location(s) (presently only Montreal) may be required to verify that all IT equipment is being properly tracked. Travel and living costs will be reimbursed in accordance with the <u>National Joint Council Travel Directive</u>.

Accessibility at Infrastructure Canada

15. <u>Accessibility at the Workplace</u>. INFC's on-site work location offers barrier-free access to, and use of, its facilities, including building entrances, elevators, washrooms, and signage.

16. <u>Accessibility on the Web</u>. INFC's software development standards for internal- and externalfacing applications maintain adherence to WCAG standards [i.e., Web Content Accessibility Guidelines developed by the World Wide Web Consortium (W3C)].

Constraints

17. Normal working hours are no earlier than 8:00 am to no later than 5:00 pm EST Monday through Friday (except for statutory holidays as defined by the province of work). Contractor resources will be expected to work 7.5 hours per day within these normal working hours, unless arrangements are made ahead of time with the Technical Authority. The Technical Authority may authorize additional hours of work in advance at the same rate as normal hours. For the duration of the Contract, all resources must be available to work outside normal hours on evenings and weekends as required.

18. Resources will be required to lift boxes and fragile equipment up to approximately 20 kg in weight.

19. Currently, masks are mandatory when walking around the floors, in elevators and in storage rooms. They are not required while sitting at the workstation.

Method and Source of Acceptance

20. All deliverables and services rendered under any contract are subject to inspection by the Technical Authority. The Technical Authority shall have the right to reject any deliverables that are not considered satisfactory, or require their correction before payment will be authorized.

APPENDIX A TO ANNEX A - TASKING ASSESSMENT PROCEDURE

- 1. Where a requirement for a specific task is identified, a draft Task Authorization Form (TA Form) as attached at Appendix B to Annex A will be provided to the Contractor. Once a draft TA Form is received, the Contractor must submit to the Technical Authority a quotation to supply the requested Resource Category based on the information identified in the TA Form, as well as its corresponding proposed resource(s). The quotation must be signed and submitted to Canada within the time for response identified in the TA Form. The Contractor will be given a minimum of five (5) working days (or any longer time period specified in the draft TA) turnaround time to submit a quotation.
- 2. With each quotation the Contractor must propose the required number of resources and for each proposed resource the Contractor must supply a résumé, the requested security clearance information, and must complete the Response Tables at Appendix C to Annex A applicable to the Resource Category identified in the draft TA. The résumés must demonstrate that each proposed individual meets the qualification requirements described (including any educational requirements, work experience requirements, and professional designation or membership requirements, if applicable). With respect to the proposed resources:
 - (i) Proposed resources may be employees of the Contractor or employees of a subcontractor, or these individuals may be independent contractors to whom the Contractor would subcontract a portion of the Work. (Refer to Appendix D to Annex A, Certifications).
 - (ii) For educational requirements for a particular degree, designation or certificate, Canada will only consider educational programmes that were successfully completed by the resource before the date the draft TA was first issued to the Contractor.
 - (iii) For work experience, Canada will not consider experience gained as part of an educational programme, except for experience gained through a formal co-operative programme at a post-secondary institution.
 - (iv) For any requirements that specify a particular time period (e.g., 2 years) of work experience, Canada will disregard any information about experience if the résumé does not include the relevant dates (month and year) for the experience claimed (i.e., the start date and end date). Canada will evaluate only the duration that the resource actually worked on a project or projects (from his or her start date to end date), instead of the overall start and end date of a project or a combination of projects in which a resource has participated.
 - (v) A résumé must not simply indicate the title of the individual's position, but must demonstrate that the resource has the required work experience by explaining the responsibilities and work performed by the individual while in that position. Only listing experience without providing any supporting data to describe responsibilities, duties and relevance to the requirement, or reusing the same wording as the TA Form, will not be considered "demonstrated" for the purposes of the assessment. The Contractor should provide complete details as to where, when, month and year, and how, through which activities/responsibilities, the stated qualifications/experience were obtained. In situations in which a proposed resource worked at the same time on more than one project, the duration of any overlapping time period will be counted only once toward any requirements that relate to the individual's length of experience.
- 3. The qualifications and experience of the proposed resources will be assessed against the requirements set out in Appendix C to Annex A to determine each proposed resource's compliance with the mandatory and rated criteria. Canada may request proof of successful completion of formal training, as well as reference information. Canada may conduct reference checks to verify the accuracy of the information provided. If reference checks are done, they will be conducted in writing by e-mail (unless the contact at the reference is only available by telephone). Canada will not assess any points or consider a mandatory criterion met unless the

response is received within 5 working days. On the third working day after sending out the emails, if Canada has not received a response, Canada will notify the Contractor by e-mail, to allow the Contractor to contact its reference directly to ensure that it responds to Canada within 5 working days. Wherever information provided by a reference differs from the information supplied by the Contractor, the information supplied by the reference will be the information assessed. A mandatory criterion will not be considered as met if the reference customer is not a customer of the Contractor itself (for example, the customer cannot be the customer of an affiliate of the Contractor). Nor will a mandatory criterion be considered as met if the customer is itself an affiliate or other entity that does not deal at arm's length with the Contractor. Crown references will be accepted.

- 4. During the assessment of the resources proposed, should the references for two or more resources required under that TA either be unavailable or fail to substantiate the required qualifications of the proposed resources to perform the required services, the Contractor's quotation may be found to be non-responsive.
- 5. Only quotations that meet all of the mandatory criteria will be considered for assessment of the point rated criteria. Each resource proposed must attain the required minimum score for the point rated criteria for the Resource Category. If the minimum score for any proposed resource is less than what is required, the Contractor's quotation will be found to be non-responsive.
- 6. Once the quotation has been accepted by the Technical Authority, the TA Form will be signed by Canada and provided to the Contractor for signature. The TA Form must be appropriately signed by Canada prior to commencement of any work. The Contractor must not commence work until a validly issued TA Form (the Task Authorization) has been received, and any work performed in its absence is done at the Contractor's own risk.

APPENDIX B TO ANNEX A - TASK AUTHORIZATION FORM

| TASK AUTHORIZATION (TA) NUMBER: * Please include this number on all in: | voices | | AMENDMENT NUMBER: | | | |
|---|---|----------------|-------------------|--------------|-------------------|--|
| TA Originator | NAME: | | Responsi | bility Code: | | |
| CONTRACTOR'S | NAME: | | | | | |
| TO THE CONTRACTOR: Subject supply the following services in accor instructions set out in the contract. | | | | | | |
| TASK TITLE | | | | | | |
| LOG NO. | N/A | REI | EASE NO. | | | |
| TASK TYPE (ENHANCEMENT/T UPDATE) | TABLE | DA | |) | | |
| SHARED COST TO INFC/CLIEN | іт | | R REVIEW | | | |
| PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE | From: | | То | : | | |
| BACKGROUND | | | I | | | |
| DESCRIPTION OF WORK/REQU | | | | | | |
| RISK IF ENHANCEMENT IS NO | | | | | | |
| | . , | | | | REQUIRED? (Y/N) | |
| | | | | | H REQUIRED? (Y/N) | |
| | DESIGN WALKTHROUGH REQUIRED? (Y/N) TRANSLATION REQUIRED? (Y/N) NEW SIMSI DATA BEING INTRODUCED (METADATA NEEDED)? (Y/N) | | | | | |
| | • | A NEEDED)? (1/ | v) | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| IMPACT ON PUBLIC WEB SITE: IMPACT ON DATA CENTRE OPERATIONS (new non-functional requirements): Data Centre Footprint (new hardware, replacement or decommissioning) (Y/N) Software or Application (e.g. Web, COTS, database)? (Y/N) Services (e.g. DBA) Required? (Y/N) Service Management (SLA, CONOPS, Hours of Operations, Help Desk, DRP)? (Y/N) | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| RESOURCES (PER DIEM) Résumés of the resources must be provided for INFC and PWGSC review with this document. | | | | | | |
| Name | Category | Classification | Start | date | End date | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |

File No. - N° du dossier PS-4446

| COST BREAKDOWN: Upon complete and to the PWGSC Contracting Authori | | | | shall prepare ar | nd submit t | o the INFC Authority |
|--|----------------|----------------------------|----------------------|--------------------------------|-------------|-------------------------------|
| Resource/Project | No. of days | Per diem or Fixed Price | Sub-Total | Travel & Living Expenses | Re | Cost of the source/Project |
| | / | | + | + | <u> </u> | |
| HARDWARE/SOFTWARE COST: | | | | | | |
| AMOUNT OF THE AMENDMENT | (If Applical | ole): | | | | |
| AMOUNT OF THE TA (INCLUDIN | G ALL AMF | ENDMENTS): | | | | |
| GST: | | | | | | |
| HST (as of 2010-07-01): | | | | | | |
| TOTAL AMOUNT OF THE TA (inc | cluding GS | T and HST): | | | | |
| FINANCIAL CODING: | | | | | | |
| BASIS OF PAYMENT | In ac | ccordance with th | ie contract, art | icle XX. | | |
| METHOD OF PAYMENT | In ac | cordance with the | contract, article | XX. | | |
| AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES: | The C work. | Contractor must obtain | n all of the require | ed signatures pri | or to the c | ommencement of |
| CLIENT/PROJECT AUTHORITY (INFC) | | | | | Date: | |
| CONTRACTING AUTHORITY (PWGSC) | | | | | Date: | |

APPENDIX C TO ANNEX A - RESOURCES ASSESSMENT CRITERIA AND RESPONSE TABLE

| | Resource Ev | aluation C | Criteria Ma | ndatory a | ind Rated | | |
|---------|--|-----------------------------------|---------------|------------|---|---------------------------------|--|
| Resourc | ce Category | IT Asse | t Managem | ent Servi | ces | | |
| Name of | f Proposed Resource | <insert name=""></insert> | | | | | |
| | · · · · · | MANDAT | ORY CRIT | ERIA | | | |
| M1 | Security Clearance The Bidder must confirm the Reliability (or higher) level: Resource Name: <insert> File #: <insert #=""></insert></insert> | | | Sec Exp | a valid security cle urity Level: <insert iry date: <insert></insert></insert | | |
| M2 | The proposed resource mu | st have a | high school | diploma. | | | |
| | Bidder Response: | | | | Cross Reference | to Résumé: | |
| M3 | The Bidder must demonstra years' experience, within th equipment. | | | | | | |
| | Bidder Response: | | | | Cross Reference | to Résumé: | |
| | 1 | POINT-R/ | ATED CRIT | ERIA | | | |
| | | | Max Points | Bidde | er Substantiation | Cross Reference to Résumé | |
| R1 | The Bidder should demonst that the proposed resource experience sending and red IT equipment through Cana or other transport service. <u>Score</u> : 1+ years to 2 years = 5 poin 2+ years to 3 years = 10 po 3+ years = 15 points | has ceiving ada Post nts | /15 | | | | |
| R2 | The Bidder should demonst that the proposed resource experience using an asset management tracking tool s Cherwell. | has | /15 | | | | |

| | Score: Experience with Cherwell: 1+ years to 2 years = 5 points 2+ years to 3 years = 10 points 3+ years = 15 points OR Experience with another asset management tracking tool: 1+ years to 2 years = 3 points 2+ years to 3 years = 4 points 3+ years = 5 points | | |
|----|---|-----|--|
| R3 | The Bidder should demonstrate that the proposed resource has experience in computer imaging and/or wiping computer content. <u>Score</u> : Computer imaging: 6+ months = 5 points Wiping computer content: 6+ months = 5 points Both computer imaging and wiping computer content: 6+ months = 15 points | /15 | |
| | Maximum Score | 45 | |
| | Pass Mark | 30 | |
| | Bidder's Score | | |

APPENDIX D TO ANNEX A - CERTIFICATIONS AT THE TA STAGE

The following Certifications are to be used, as applicable. If they apply, they must be signed and attached to the Contractor's quotation when it is submitted to Canada.

1. CERTIFICATION OF EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE

The Contractor certifies that all the information provided in the résumés and supporting material proposed for completing the subject work, particularly the information pertaining to education, achievements, experience and work history, has been verified by the Contractor to be true and accurate. Furthermore, the Contractor warrants that every individual proposed by the Contractor for the requirement is capable of performing the Work described in the Task Authorization.

| Print name of authorized individual & | sign above | Date |
|---------------------------------------|-------------|------|
| | Jugit above | Duio |

2. CERTIFICATION OF AVAILABILITY OF PERSONNEL

The Contractor certifies that, should it be authorized to provide services under this Task Authorization, the persons proposed in the quotation will be available to commence performance of the work within a reasonable time from the date of issuance of the valid Task Authorization, or within the time specified in the TA Form, and will remain available to perform the work in relation to the fulfillment of the requirement.

Print name of authorized individual & sign above Date

3. CERTIFICATION OF STATUS OF PERSONNEL

If the Contractor has proposed any individual who is not an employee of the Contractor, the Contractor certifies that it has permission from that individual to propose his/her services in relation to the Work to be performed under this TA and to submit his/her résumé to Canada. At any time during the Contract Period the Contractor must, upon request from the Contracting Authority, provide the written confirmation, signed by the individual, of the permission that was given to the Contractor of his/her availability. Failure to comply with the request may result in a default under the Contract in accordance with the General Conditions.

Print name of authorized individual & sign above Date

4. CERTIFICATION OF LANGUAGE - BILINGUAL

The Contractor certifies that the proposed resource(s) in response to this draft Task Authorization is/are fluent in both official languages of Canada (French and English). The individual(s) proposed must be able to communicate orally and in writing in French and English without any assistance and with minimal errors.

| Print name of authorized individual & sign above | ; |
|--|---|
|--|---|

Date

ANNEX B

BASIS OF PAYMENT

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PER DIEM RATES

The following firm, all-inclusive, per diem rates, including overhead and profit based on a 7.5 hour day, will be used to calculate the labor costs for any TA. The qualifications for the personnel shall be in accordance with Appendix C to Annex A.

| | | Firm Per Die | em Rate | |
|------------------------------|----------------------------|--------------|--------------|----|
| Resource Category | Initial Contract Period | | Option Years | |
| | 2 Years | 1 | 2 | 3 |
| IT Asset Management Services | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ |

ANNEX C

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS CHECK LIST

| * | |
|---|--|
|---|--|

Government Gouvernement of Canada du Canada

| Contract Number / Numéro du contrat | |
|-------------------------------------|--|
| PS4446 | |

Security Classification / Classification de sécurité UNCLASSIFIED

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS CHECK LIST (SRCL) LISTE DE VÉRIFICATION DES EXIGENCES RELATIVES À LA SÉCURITÉ (LVERS)

| PART A - CONTRACT INFORMATION / PARTIE A | - INFORMATION CONTR | ACTUELLE | | |
|--|--------------------------------|--|--------------------------------------|-----------------------|
| 1. Originating Government Department or Organization | on / | 2. Bra | anch or Directorate / Direction géné | |
| Ministère ou organisme gouvernemental d'origine | Infrastructure C | anada Op | perations Support, Security | and IM Services |
| 3, a) Subcontract Number / Numéro du contrat de so | us-traitance 3, b) | Name and Address of S | ubcontractor / Nom et adresse du s | ous-traitant |
| 4. Brief Description of Work / Brève description du tra | avail | | | |
| | | | | |
| IT Asset Management | | | | |
| | | | | |
| 5, a) Will the supplier require access to Controlled G | oods? | | | V No Yes |
| Le fournisseur aura-t-il accès à des marchandis | | | | X Non Oui |
| 5, b) Will the supplier require access to unclassified r | military technical data subi | ect to the provisions of t | the Technical Data Control | No Yes |
| Regulations? | initially toolinitoal data add | | are reciment bata control | X Non Oui |
| Le fournisseur aura-t-il accès à des données te | chniques militaires non da | ssifiées qui sont assuje | tties aux dispositions du Règlement | |
| sur le contrôle des données techniques? | | | | |
| Indicate the type of access required / Indiquer le type | ype d'accès requis | | | |
| 6. a) Will the supplier and its employees require acce | ess to PROTECTED and/o | r CLASSIFIED informat | tion or assets? | No Ves |
| Le fournisseur ainsi que les employés auront-is | accès à des renseignem | | | No X Yes Non X Oui |
| (Specify the level of access using the chart in Q | | - | | |
| (Préciser le niveau d'accès en utilisant le tablea | | | A | |
| b) Will the supplier and its employees (e.g. cleane PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information) | | require access to rest | noted access areas? No access to | |
| Le fournisseur et ses employés (p. ex. nettoyeu | | auroni u ls accès à des z | opes d'accès restreintes? L'accès | Non U Oui |
| à des renseignements ou à des biens PROTÉG | | | 5165 4 45000 1000 011150 - L 40000 | |
| 6, c) is this a commercial courier or delivery requirem | | | | No Yes |
| S'agit-il d'un contrat de messagerie ou de livrais | son commerciale sans en | reposage de nuit? | | X Non Oui |
| 7, a) Indicate the type of information that the supplier | will be required to access | / Indiquer le type d'info | rmation auquel le fournisseur devra | avoir accès |
| | | | | |
| Canada X | NATO / OT | | Foreign / Étrange | r I |
| 7. b) Release restrictions / Restrictions relatives à la | | | | |
| No release restrictions | All NATO countries | | No release restrictions | |
| Aucune restriction relative X | Tous les pays de l'OTA | N | Aucune restriction relative | |
| à la diffusion | | | à la diffusion | |
| Not releasable | | | | |
| À ne pas diffuser | | | | |
| | | | | |
| Restricted to: / Limité à : | Restricted to: / Limité à | : [_] | Restricted to: / Limité à : | |
| Specify country(ies): / Préciser le(s) pays : | Specify country(ies): / F | réciser le(s) pays : | Specify country(ies): / Préci- | ser le(s) pays : |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| 7. oh i aval of lafe meeting i blive availite fermeting | | | | |
| 7, c) Level of information / Niveau d'information PROTECTED A | NATO UNCLASS | | PROTECTED A | |
| PROTÉGÉA | NATO NON CLASSIFIED | | PROTÉGÉ A | |
| | NATO RESTRICTED | | PROTECTED B | |
| PROTÉGÉ B X | NATO DIFFUSION RES | TREINTE | PROTÉGÉ B | |
| PROTECTED C | NATO CONFIDENTIAL | | PROTECTED C | |
| PROTÉGÉ C | NATO CONFIDENTIEL | | PROTÉGÉ C | |
| CONFIDENTIAL | NATO SECRET | | CONFIDENTIAL | |
| CONFIDENTIEL | NATO SECRET | | CONFIDENTIEL | |
| SECRET | COSMIC TOP SECRET | | SECRET | |
| SECRET | COSMIC TRÈS SECRE | | SECRET | |
| TOP SECRET | | | TOP SECRET | |
| TRÈS SECRET | | | TRÈS SECRET | |
| TOP SECRET (SIGINT) | | | TOP SECRET (SIGINT) | |
| TRÈS SECRET (SIGINT) | | | TRÈS SECRET (SIGINT) | |
| | | | | |

TBS/SCT 350-103(2004/12)

Security Classification / Classification de sécurité UNCLASSIFIED



File No. - N° du dossier PS-4446

| | | | | | | | | | | _ |
|-------------------------------|---|----------|--|--|---------|------------|--------------|--|--------------|----------|
| | Coverament | 10 | ouvernement | Г | | | Contr | act Number / Numéro du cont | rat | |
| * | Government of Canada | | u Canada | | | | | PS4446 | | |
| | | | | [| | | Security CI | assification / Classification de UNCLASSIFIED | sécurité | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | SE | CURITY REQUIREMEN | TS CH | HECK L | ST (SRC | L) | | |
| | | LIST | E DE VER FC | AT ON DES EX GENCE | S REL | AT VE | S A LA SE | ECUR TE (LVERS) | | |
| 1 Originating | Government Dep | artm | ent or Organizatio | INFORMATION CONTRAC | | LE | 2. Branch o | or Directorate / Direction géné | rale ou Dir | rection |
| | u organisme gouv | | | Infrastructure Car | ada | | | ions Support, Security | | |
| 3, a) Subcontr | act Number / Nur | néro | du contrat de sou | is-traitance 3, b) Nai | me and | d Address | | tractor / Nom et adresse du s | | |
| 4. Brief Descri | intion of Work / B | ràve | description du tra | vail | | | | | | |
| | et Manageme | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | to Controlled Go des marchandise | | | | | | X No | |
| | | | | ilitary technical data subject | to the | provision | ns of the Te | chnical Data Control | | |
| Regulatio | ons? | | | | | | | | X No | |
| | sseur aura-t-il ac ntrôle des donnée | | | hniques militaires non classi | fiées q | lui sont a | ssujetties a | ux dispositions du Règlement | t i | |
| | | | | pe d'accès requis | | | | | | |
| 6. a) Will the s | supplier and its en | nploy | ees require acce | ss to PROTECTED and/or C | LASS | FIED info | ormation or | assets? | No. | Yes |
| | | | | accès à des renseignement | s ou à | des bien | s PROTÉG | ÉS et/ou CLASS F ÉS? | No | on X Oui |
| | | | ng the chart in Qu utilisant le tableau | iestion 7, c) J qui se trouve à la question | 7 c) | | | | | |
| | | | | | | access t | o restricted | access areas? No access to | V No | Yes |
| | | | | r assets is permitted. | | | | | X No | on 📙 Oui |
| | | | | s, personnel d'entretien) aur ÉS et/ou CLASSIFIÉS n'est | | | des zones (| d'accès restreintes? L'accès | | |
| 6, c) s this a c | commercial couri | er or e | delivery requirem | ent with no overnight storage | 87 | | | | X No | |
| | | | | on commerciale sans entrep | | | | | | |
| 7, a) Indicate 1 | the type of inform | ation | that the supplier | | _ | r je type | d'informatio | on auquel le fournisseur devra | | ès. |
| | Canada | X | | NATO / OTAN | | | | Foreign / Étranger | | |
| | | trictio | ins relatives à la c | | | | | | | |
| No release re | estrictions riction relative | X | | All NATO countries Tous les pays de l'OTAN | | 1 | | No release restrictions Aucune restriction relative | | |
| à la diffusion | | <u> </u> | 1 | rous les pays de l'Orran | | 1 | | à la diffusion | | |
| Neteslasse | l. | | i l | | | | | | | |
| Not releasab À ne pas diff | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 1 | | | 1 | | | | |
| Restricted to | | L | | Restricted to: / Limité à : | | J | | Restricted to: / Limité à : | | |
| Specify coun | try(ies): / Précise | r le(s |) pays : | Specify country(ies): / Préc | ser le | (s) pays | : | Specify country(ies): / Précis | ser le(s) pa | iys : |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | information / Nive | au d' | information | | | | | | | |
| PROTECTE | | x | | NATO UNCLASS | | | | PROTECTED A | | |
| PROTÉGÉ A | 0.0 | = | | NATO NON CLASSIFIÉ | | | | PROTÉGÉ A | | |
| PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ E | | хII | | NATO RESTRICTED NATO DIFFUSION RESTR | EINT | | | PROTECTED B PROTÉGÉ B | | |
| PROTECTE | | = | | NATO CONFIDENTIAL | | | | PROTECTED C | | |
| PROTÉGÉ C | | | | NATO CONFIDENTIEL | | | | PROTÉGÉ C | | |
| CONFIDENT | | | | NATO SECRET | | | | CONFIDENTIAL | | |
| CONFIDENT SECRET | TEL L | ╡ | | NATO SECRET COSMIC TOP SECRET | | | | CONFIDENTIEL SECRET | | |
| SECRET | | | | COSMIC TRÈS SECRET | | | | SECRET | | |
| TOP SECRE | T I | = | | | | | | TOP SECRET | | |
| TRÈS SECR | | | | | | | | TRÈS SECRET | | |
| TOP SECRE | , | | | | | | | TOP SECRET (SIGINT) | \square | |
| TRÈS SECR | ET (SIGINT) | | | | | | | TRÈS SECRET (SIGINT) | | |

TBS/SCT 350-103(2004/12)

Security Classification / Classification de sécurité UNCLASSIFIED

Canadä

*

Government Gouvernement of Canada du Canada

| Contract Number / Numéro du contrat |
|--|
| PS4446 |
| Security Classification / Classification de sécurité UNCLASSIFIED |

| | tinued) / PARTIE A (suite) | |
|--|--|---|
| | plier require access to PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED COMSEC information or assets? | X No Yes |
| | eur aura-t-i accès à des renseignements ou à des biens COMSEC désignés PROTÉGÉS et/ou CLASS F[ÉS? ate the jevel of sensitivity: | Non Oui |
| | native, indiquer le niveau de sensibilité : | |
| 9. Will the sup | plier require access to extremely sensitive INFOSEC information or assets? | V No Yes |
| | eur aura +il accès à des renseignements ou à des biens INFOSEC de nature extrêmement délicate? | X No Yes Non Oui |
| Short Title(s | s) of material / Titre(s) abrégé(s) du matériel ; | |
| Document N | Number / Numéro du document : | |
| | RSONNEL (SUPPLIER) / PARTIE B - PERSONNEL (FOURNISSEUR) | |
| 10. a) Personn | el security screening level required / Niveau de contrôle de la sécurité du personnel requis | |
| | RELIABILITY STATUS CONFIDENTIAL SECRET TOP SECR | ET |
| X | COTE DE FIABILITÉ CONFIDENTIEL SECRET TRÈS SEC | |
| | TOP SECRET-SIGINT NATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO SECRET COSMIC TO | OP SECRET |
| | TRÈS SECRET – SIGINT INATO CONFIDENTIEL INATO SECRET COSMIC TR | RÈS SECRET |
| | SITE ACCESS | |
| | ACCÉS AUX EMPLACEMENTS | |
| | Special comments: | |
| | Commentaires spéciaux : | |
| | | |
| | NOTE: If multiple levels of screening are identified, a Security Classification Guide must be provided. | |
| 10.10.10 | REMARQUE : Si plusieurs niveaux de contrôle de sécurité sont requis, un guide de classification de la sécurité doit être f | |
| | screened personnel be used for portions of the work? connel sans autorisation sécuritaire peut-il se voir confier des parties du travail? | X No Yes Non Oui |
| | vill unscreened personnel be escorted? | No Yes |
| | ifirmative, le personnel en guestion sera++ escorté? | Non Oui |
| | | |
| | | |
| | EGUARDS (SUPPLIER) / PARTIE C - MESURES DE PROTECTION (FOURNISSEUR) | |
| | EGUARDS (SUPPLIER) / PARTIE C - MESURES DE PROTECTION (FOURNISSEUR) ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS | |
| INFORMATI | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS | |
| INFORMATION 11. a) Will the | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or | X No Yes Oui |
| INFORMATION 11. a) Will the premise | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or | X No Yes Non Oui |
| INFORMATION 11. a) Will the premise | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or os? hisseur sera⊷il tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou | |
| INFORMATION 11. a) Will the premise Le fourr CLASSI | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or is? hisseur sera-t-il tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou FIÉS? | Non Oui |
| INFORMATION 11. a) Will the premise Le fourr CLASSI 11. b) Will the | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or is? hisseur serat-il tenu de receivoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou IFIÉS? supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? | Non Oui |
| INFORMATI 11. a) Will the premise Le four CLASSI 11. b) Will the Le four | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or ps? isseur sera-t-il tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou FIES? supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? hisseur sera-t-il tenu de protéger des renseignements ou des biens COMSEC? | Non Oui |
| INFORMATION 11. a) Will the premise Le fourr CLASSI 11. b) Will the | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or ps? isseur sera-t-il tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou FIES? supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? hisseur sera-t-il tenu de protéger des renseignements ou des biens COMSEC? | Non Oui |
| INFORMATI 11. a) Will the premise Le four CLASSI 11. b) Will the Le four | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or ps? isseur sera-t-il tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou FIES? supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? hisseur sera-t-il tenu de protéger des renseignements ou des biens COMSEC? | Non Oui |
| INFORMATI 11. a) Will the premise Le four CLASSI 11. b) Will the Le four PRODUCTIO 11. c) Will the p | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or ps? isseur sera - il tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou FIES? supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? isseur sera - il tenu de protéger des renseignements ou des biens COMSEC? ON production (manufacture, and/or repair and/or modification) of PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED material or equipment | X Non Oui |
| INFORMATI 11. a) Will the premise Le fourr CLASSI 11. b) Will the Le fourr PRODUCTION 11. c) Will the propulation of th | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or is? insecur sera+-il tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou FIÉS? supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? insecur sera+-il tenu de protéger des renseignements ou des biens COMSEC? N production (manufacture, and/or repair and/or modification) of PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED material or equipment the supplier's site or premises? | X Non Oui |
| INFORMATI 11. a) Will the premise Le fourr CLASSI 11. b) Will the Le fourr PRODUCTION 11. c) Will the propuestion occur at Les inst | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or is? isseur sera⊷il tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou FIES? supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? isseur sera⊷il tenu de protéger des renseignements ou des biens COMSEC? DN production (manufacture, and/or repair and/or modification) of PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED material or equipment the supplier's site or premises? allations du fournisseur serviont⊷lles à la production (fabrication et/ou réparation et/ou modification) de matériel PROTÉGÉ | X Non Oui |
| INFORMATI 11. a) Will the premise Le fourr CLASSI 11. b) Will the Le fourr PRODUCTION 11. c) Will the propuestion occur at Les inst | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or is? insecur sera+-il tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou FIÉS? supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? insecur sera+-il tenu de protéger des renseignements ou des biens COMSEC? N production (manufacture, and/or repair and/or modification) of PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED material or equipment the supplier's site or premises? | X Non Oui |
| INFORMATI 11. a) Will the premise Le four CLASSI 11. b) Will the Le four PRODUCTIO 11. c) Will the p occur at Les inst et/ou CL | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or is? isseur sera⊷il tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou FIES? supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? isseur sera⊷il tenu de protéger des renseignements ou des biens COMSEC? DN production (manufacture, and/or repair and/or modification) of PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED material or equipment the supplier's site or premises? allations du fournisseur serviont⊷lles à la production (fabrication et/ou réparation et/ou modification) de matériel PROTÉGÉ | X Non Oui |
| INFORMATI 11. a) Will the premise Le four CLASSI 11. b) Will the Le four PRODUCTIO 11. c) Will the p occur at Les inst et/ou CL | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or isseur sera til tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou IFIÉS? supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? hisseur sera til tenu de protéger des renseignements ou des biens COMSEC? DN production (manufacture, and/or repair and/or modification) of PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED material or equipment the supplier's site or premises? allations du fournisseur serviront-elles à la production (fabrication et/ou réparation et/ou modification) de matériel PROTÉGÉ ASSIFIE? | X Non Oui |
| INFORMATION 11. a) Will the premise Le fourn CLASSI 11. b) Will the Le fourn PRODUCTION 11. c) Will the pro- occur at Les inst et/ou CL INFORMATION | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or is? isseur sera it tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou FFES? supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? isseur sera it tenu de protéger des renseignements ou des biens COMSEC? DN production (manufacture, and/or repair and/or modification) of PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED material or equipment the supplier's site or premises? allations du fournisseur serviront-elles à la production (fabrication et/ou réparation et/ou modification) de matériel PROTÉGÉ ASSIFIE? DN TECHNOLOGY (IT) MEDIA / SUPPORT RELATIF À LA TECHNOLOGIE DE L'INFORMATION (TI) | X Non Oui |
| INFORMATI 11. a) Will the premise Le four CLASSI 11. b) Will the Le four PRODUCTIO 11. c) Will the p occur at Les inst et/ou CL INFORMATIO 11. d) Will the s | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or isseur sera til tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou IFIÉS? supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? hisseur sera til tenu de protéger des renseignements ou des biens COMSEC? DN production (manufacture, and/or repair and/or modification) of PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED material or equipment the supplier's site or premises? allations du fournisseur serviront-elles à la production (fabrication et/ou réparation et/ou modification) de matériel PROTÉGÉ ASSIFIE? | X Non Oui X No Yes Oui X No Yes X No Yes Oui |
| INFORMATION 11. a) Will the premises Le fourr CLASSI 11. b) Will the Le fourr PRODUCTION 11. c) Will the procession occur at Les inste et/ou CL INFORMATION 11. d) Will the single state information Le fourr | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or is? inisseur sera | X Non Oui |
| INFORMATION 11. a) Will the premises Le fourr CLASSI 11. b) Will the Le fourr PRODUCTION 11. c) Will the procession occur at Les inste et/ou CL INFORMATION 11. d) Will the single state information Le fourr | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or is? inisseur sera | X Non Oui |
| INFORMATION 11. a) Will the premises Le fourn CLASSI 11. b) Will the Le fourn PRODUCTION 11. c) Will the process et/our CL INFORMATION 11. d) Will the single information Le fourn renseign | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or ns? isseur sera-t-il tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou IFIES? Supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? Supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? Supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? Supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information of PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED material or equipment the supplier's site or premises? Supplier be required to use its a production (fabrication et/ou réparation et/ou modification) de matériel PROTÉGÉ ASSIFIÉ? Supplier be required to use its T systems to electronically process, produce or store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information (Th) supplier be required to use its T systems to electronically process, produce or store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information et dat? Supplier be required to use its T systems to electronically process, produce or store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information et data? Supplier be required to use its T systems to electronically process, produce or store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information et data? Supplier be required to use its PROTEGÉS et/ou CLASSIFIES? | X Non Oui X Non Yes X Non Oui |
| INFORMATI 11. a) Will the premise Le four CLASSI 11. b) Will the Le four PRODUCTIO 11. c) Will the p occur at Les inst et/ou CL INFORMATIO 11. d) Will the s informat Le four renseigr 11. e) Will then | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or is? isseur sera-t-il tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou [FIÉS? supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? isseur sera-t-il tenu de protéger des renseignements ou des biens COMSEC? DN production (manufacture, and/or repair and/or modification) of PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED material or equipment the supplier's site or premises? allations du fournisseur serviront-elles à la production (fabrication et/ou réparation et/ou modification) de matériel PROTÉGÉ ASSIFIE? DN TECHNOLOGY (IT) MEDIA / SUPPORT RELATIF À LA TECHNOLOGIE DE L'INFORMATION (TI) supplier be required to use its [T systems to electronically process, produce or store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED iton or data? isseur sera-t-il tenu d'utiliser ses propres systèmes informatiques pour traiter, produire ou stocker électroniquement des tements ou des données PROTÉGÉS et/ou CLASSIFIES? | X Non Oui |
| INFORMATI 11. a) Will the premise Le four CLASSI 11. b) Will the Le four PRODUCTIO 11. c) Will the p occur at Les inst et/ou CL INFORMATIO 11. d) Will the s informat Le four renseigr 11. e) Will then Dispose | ON / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information or assets on its site or ns? isseur sera-t-il tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur place des renseignements ou des biens PROTÉGÉS et/ou IFIES? Supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? Supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? Supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information or assets? Supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC information of PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED material or equipment the supplier's site or premises? Supplier be required to use its a production (fabrication et/ou réparation et/ou modification) de matériel PROTÉGÉ ASSIFIÉ? Supplier be required to use its T systems to electronically process, produce or store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information (Th) supplier be required to use its T systems to electronically process, produce or store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information et dat? Supplier be required to use its T systems to electronically process, produce or store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information et data? Supplier be required to use its T systems to electronically process, produce or store PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED information et data? Supplier be required to use its PROTEGÉS et/ou CLASSIFIES? | X Non Oui |

TBS/SCT 350-103(2004/12)

Security Classification / Classification de sécurité UNCLASSIFIED

Canadä

*

Government Gouvernement du Canada

| Contract Number / Numéro du contrat | |
|--|--|
| PS4446 | |
| Security Classification / Classification de sécurité | |
| UNCLASSIFIED | |

PART C = (continued) / PARTIE C = (suite)

For users completing the form manually use the summary chart below to indicate the category(ies) and level(s) of safeguarding required at the supplier's site(s) or premises.

Les utilisateurs qui remplissent le formulaire manuellement doivent utiliser le tableau récapitulatif ci-dessous pour indiquer, pour chaque catégorie, les niveaux de sauvegarde requis aux installations du fournisseur.

For users completing the form online (via the Internet), the summary chart is automatically populated by your responses to previous questions. Dans le cas des utilisateurs qui remplissent le formulaire en ligne (par Internet), les réponses aux questions précédentes sont automatiquement saisies dans le tableau récapitulatif.

| SUMMARY CHART | 1 | TABLEAU RÉCAPITULATIF |
|---------------|---|-----------------------|
|---------------|---|-----------------------|

| Category Catégorie | | OTECT OTÉC | | | CLASSIFIED NATO CLASSIFIE | | | NATO | | | | COMSEC | | | | |
|--|--|---------------|----------|--------------|------------------------------|----------------|--------------------------------|----------------------|----------------|------------------------------------|----------|-----------------|---|--------------|-----------|----------------|
| | A | 8 | c | CONFIDENTIAL | SECRET | TOP SECRET | NATO RESTRICTED | NATO CONFIDENTIAL | NATO SECRET | COSMIC TOP | | отесті котеа | | CONFIDENTIAL | A. SECRET | TOP SECRET |
| | | | | CONFIDENTIE. | | TRÊS SECRET | NATO DIFFUSION RESTRENTE | NATO CONFIDENTIEL | | SECRET COSMIC TRES SECRET | A | в | с | CONFIDENTIEL | | TRES SECRET |
| Information / Assets Renseignements / Biens | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Production | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| IT Media / Support TI | ⊢ | \vdash | \vdash | | | - | | | | | \vdash | \vdash | | | | |
| T Link / | \vdash | t | | | | i – | | i | 1 | | \vdash | \vdash | | | - | |
| Lien électronique | - | - | | | | | | | | | - | - | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | 12. a) is the description of the work contained within this SRCL PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED? La description du travail visé par la présente LVERS est-elle de nature PROTÉGÉE et/ou CLASSIFIÉE? | | | | | | Ye Ou | | | | | | | | | |
| Dans l'affirma | If Yes, classify this form by annotating the top and bottom in the area entitled "Security Classification", Dans l'affirmative, classifier le présent formulaire en indiquant le niveau de sécurité dans la case intitulée « Classification de sécurité » au haut et au bas du formulaire, | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | 12, b) Will the documentation attached to this SRCL be PROTECTED and/or CLASS/FIED? La documentation associée à la présente LVERS serat-elle PROTÉGÉE et/ou CLASS/FIÉE? | | | | | | Ve Ou | | | | | | | | | |
| If Yes, classify this form by annotating the top and bottom in the area entitled "Security Classification" and indicate with attachments). Dans l'affirmative, classifier le présent formulaire en indiquant le niveau de sécurité dans la case intitulée « Classification de sécurité » au haut et au bas du formulaire et indiquer qu'il y a des pièces jointes (p. ex. SECRET avec des pièces jointes). | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

| TBS/SCT | 350-103(| 2004/12) |
|---------|----------|---------------------------------------|
| | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |

Security Classification / Classification de sécurité UNCLASSIFIED



ATTACHMENTS TO PART 3

3.1 BID SUBMISSION FORM

| BID SUBMISSION FORM | | | | | |
|--|---|--|--|--|--|
| Bidder's full legal name | | | | | |
| Authorized Representative of Bidder for | Name | | | | |
| evaluation purposes (e.g., clarifications) | Title | | | | |
| | Address | | | | |
| | Telephone # | | | | |
| | Fax# | | | | |
| | Email | | | | |
| Bidder's Procurement Business Number (PBN) | | | | | |
| [see the Standard Instructions 2003] | | | | | |
| [Note to Bidders: Please ensure that the PBN you provide matches the legal name under which you have submitted your bid. If it does not, the Bidder will be determined based on the legal name provided, not based on the PBN, and the Bidder will be required to submit the PBN that matches the legal name of the Bidder.] | | | | | |
| Jurisdiction of Contract: Province or territory in Canada the Bidder wishes to be the legal jurisdiction applicable to any resulting contract (if other than as specified in solicitation) | | | | | |
| Former Public Servants | Is the Bidder a FPS in receipt of a pension as defined in the bid solicitation? | | | | |
| See the Article in Part 2 of the bid solicitation entitled Former Public Servant for a definition of "Former | Yes No No | | | | |
| Public Servant". | If yes, provide the information required by the Article in Part 2 entitled "Former Public Servant" | | | | |
| | Is the Bidder a FPS who received a lump sum payment under the terms of the Work Force Adjustment Directive? | | | | |
| | Yes No | | | | |
| | If yes, provide the information required by the Article in Part 2 entitled "Former Public Servant" | | | | |
| Security Clearance Level of Bidder | | | | | |
| [include both the level and the date it was granted] | | | | | |
| [Note to Bidders: Please ensure that the security clearance matches the legal name of the Bidder. If it does not, the security clearance is not valid for the Bidder.] | | | | | |

3.2 PRICING TABLE

- 1. All prices must be submitted as firm price(s) and entered into the Pricing Table below. All applicable taxes extra.
- 2. All prices must be submitted to 2 decimal points.

| | | Firm Per Diem Rate | | | | | | |
|------------------------------|----------------------------|--------------------|----|----|--|--|--|--|
| Resource Category | Initial Contract Period | Option Years | | | | | | |
| | 2 Years | 1 | 2 | 3 | | | | |
| IT Asset Management Services | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ | | | | |

3.3 ELECTRONIC PAYMENT INSTRUMENTS

The Bidder accepts to be paid by any of the following Electronic Payment Instrument(s):

- () Direct Deposit (Domestic and International);
- () Electronic Data Interchange (EDI);
- () Wire Transfer (International Only).

ATTACHMENTS TO PART 4

4.1 BID EVALUATION CRITERIA

Note to Bidders: Résumés for four (4) resources must be provided and the following grids completed for each.

| | Resource Evaluation Criteria Mandatory and Rated | | | | | | |
|--------|--|---|-----------|-----|--|--|--|
| Resour | ce Category IT Ass | et Managem | ent Servi | ces | | | |
| Name c | of Proposed Resource <insert< th=""><th>name></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></insert<> | name> | | | | | |
| | MANDATORY CRITERIA | | | | | | |
| M1 | M1 Security Clearance The Bidder must confirm that the proposed resource holds a valid security clearance at the Reliability (or higher) level: Resource Name: <insert> Security Level: <insert> File #: <insert #=""> Expiry date: <insert></insert></insert></insert></insert> | | | | | | |
| M2 | The proposed resource must have a | high school | diploma. | | | | |
| | Bidder Response: Cross Reference to Proposal: | | | | | | |
| М3 | The Bidder must demonstrate that the years' experience, within the last five equipment. | | | | | | |
| | Bidder Response: Cross Reference to Propo | | | | | | |
| | POINT-R | ATED CRIT | ERIA | • | | | |
| | | Max Points Bidder Substantiation Cross Referent to Propo | | | | | |
| R1 | The Bidder should demonstrate that the proposed resource has experience sending and receiving IT equipment through Canada Post or other transport service. <u>Score</u> : 1+ years to 2 years = 5 2+ years to 3 years = 10 3+ years = 15 | /15 | | | | | |

| The Bidder should demonstrate that the proposed resource has experience using an asset management tracking tool such as Cherwell. Image: Cherwell of the state of the proposed resource has experience with Cherwell: R2 Score: Experience with Cherwell: 1+ years to 2 years = 5 /15 2+ years to 3 years = 10 /15 3+ years = 15 /15 OR Image: Cherwell of the proposed resource has experience with another asset management tracking tool: 1+ years to 2 years = 3 2+ years to 3 years = 4 2+ years to 3 years = 4 | | | | |
|--|----|---|-----|------|
| R2 Experience with Cherwell: 1+ years to 2 years = 5 2+ years to 3 years = 10 3+ years = 15 /15 OR Experience with another asset management tracking tool: 1+ years to 2 years = 3 2+ years to 3 years = 4 3+ years = 5 /15 The Bidder should demonstrate that the proposed resource has experience in computer imaging and/or wiping computer content. /15 R3 Score: Computer imaging: 6+ months = 5 points /15 Wiping computer content: 6+ months = 15 points /15 Both computer imaging and wiping computer content: 6+ months = 15 points /15 Maximum Score 45 | | that the proposed resource has experience using an asset management tracking tool such as | | |
| R2 1+ years to 2 years = 5 2+ years to 3 years = 10 3+ years = 15 /15 OR Experience with another asset management tracking tool: | | Score: | | |
| Experience with another asset management tracking tool: 1+ years to 2 years = 3 1+ years to 3 years = 4 1+ years to 3 years = 4 3+ years = 5 1 The Bidder should demonstrate that the proposed resource has experience in computer imaging and/or wiping computer content. 1+ search Score: Computer imaging: 6+ months = 5 points 1/15 Wiping computer content: 1/15 Both computer imaging and wiping computer content: 6+ months = 15 points Both computer imaging and wiping computer content: 6+ months = 15 points Maximum Score 45 | R2 | 1+ years to 2 years = 5 2+ years to 3 years = 10 | /15 | |
| management tracking tool: 1+ years to 2 years = 3 1+ years to 2 years = 3 2+ years to 3 years = 4 3+ years = 5 1 The Bidder should demonstrate that the proposed resource has experience in computer imaging and/or wiping computer content. Image: Computer imaging: 6+ months = 5 points R3 Computer imaging: 6+ months = 5 points /15 Wiping computer content: 6+ months = 15 points /15 Both computer imaging and wiping computer content: 6+ months = 15 points 45 | | OR | | |
| 2+ years to 3 years = 4 3+ years = 5 The Bidder should demonstrate that the proposed resource has experience in computer imaging and/or wiping computer content. Score: Computer imaging: 6+ months = 5 points Wiping computer content: 6+ months = 15 points Both computer imaging and wiping computer content: 6+ months = 15 points Maximum Score 45 | | | | |
| that the proposed resource has experience in computer imaging and/or wiping computer content.Image: Computer imaging: 6+ months = 5 pointsImage: Computer imaging: 6+ months = 5 pointsImage: Computer content: 6+ months = 15 pointsImage: Computer content: 6+ months = | | 2+ years to 3 years = 4 | | |
| R3 Computer imaging: 6+ months = 5 points /15 Wiping computer content: 6+ months = 5 points /15 Both computer imaging and wiping computer content: 6+ months = 15 points /15 Maximum Score 45 | | that the proposed resource has experience in computer imaging | | |
| R3 6+ months = 5 points 715 Wiping computer content: 6+ months = 5 points 715 Both computer imaging and wiping computer content: 6+ months = 15 points 1 Maximum Score 45 | | Score: | | |
| 6+ months = 5 points Both computer imaging and wiping computer content: 6+ months = 15 points 6+ months = 15 points Maximum Score 45 | R3 | | /15 | |
| computer content: 6+ months = 15 points Maximum Score 45 | | | | |
| | | computer content: | | |
| Pass Mark 30 | | Maximum Score | 45 | |
| | | Pass Mark | 30 | |
| Bidder's Score | | Bidder's Score | | |

ATTACHMENTS TO PART 5

5.1 FEDERAL CONTRACTORS PROGRAM FOR EMPLOYMENT EQUITY – CERTIFICATION

I, the Bidder, by submitting the present information to the Contracting Authority, certify that the information provided is true as of the date indicated below. The certifications provided to Canada are subject to verification at all times. I understand that Canada will declare a bid non-responsive, or will declare a contractor in default, if a certification is found to be untrue, whether during the bid evaluation period or during the contract period. Canada will have the right to ask for additional information to verify the Bidder's certifications. Failure to comply with any request or requirement imposed by Canada may render the bid non-responsive or constitute a default under the Contract.

For further information on the Federal Contractors Program for Employment Equity visit <u>Employment and</u> <u>Social Development Canada (ESDC) – Labour's</u> website.

Date:_____(YYYY/MM/DD) (If left blank, the date will be deemed to be the bid solicitation closing date.)

Complete both A and B.

A. Check only one of the following:

- () A1. The Bidder certifies having no work force in Canada.
- () A2. The Bidder certifies being a public sector employer.
- () A3. The Bidder certifies being a <u>federally regulated employer</u> being subject to the <u>Employment</u> <u>Equity Act</u>.
- () A4. The Bidder certifies having a combined work force in Canada of less than 100 permanent fulltime and/or permanent part-time employees.
 - A5. The Bidder has a combined workforce in Canada of 100 or more employees; and
 - () A5.1. The Bidder certifies already having a valid and current <u>Agreement to Implement</u> <u>Employment Equity</u> (AIEE) in place with ESDC-Labour.
- OR
- A5.2. The Bidder certifies having submitted the <u>Agreement to Implement Employment Equity</u> (<u>LAB1168</u>) to ESDC-Labour. As this is a condition to contract award, proceed to completing the form Agreement to Implement Employment Equity (LAB1168), duly signing it, and transmit it to ESDC-Labour.
- B. Check only one of the following:
- () B1. The Bidder is not a Joint Venture.

OR

() B2. The Bidder is a Joint venture and each member of the Joint Venture must provide the Contracting Authority with a completed annex Federal Contractors Program for Employment Equity - Certification. (Refer to the Joint Venture section of the Standard Instructions)